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Via Electronic Mail 

October 15, 2025 

 
Shannon Clemence  
46 Sandy Beach Rd. 
Vallejo, 94590 
Email: Redvine1960@gmail.com   
 
SUBJECT:  Violation Report and Complaint for Administrative Civil Penalties (BCDC 

Enforcement No. ER2023.058.00) 

Dear Respondent: 

Please see the enclosed Violation Report and Complaint for Administrative Civil Penalties. BCDC 

is initiating a formal enforcement proceeding to compel you to obtain a permit for the 

placement of unauthorized fill in BCDC’s Bay and 100-foot shoreline band jurisdiction.  

This action is being taken because you have failed to resolve this issue since you were first 

notified about it on November 20, 2023.   

Within thirty-five days, you must submit to me the completed statement of defense form or a 

certified cashier’s check in the amount of the proposed administrative civil penalty.  

Signed, 

 

ANNE USHER 

Enforcement Analyst 

AU/mm 

cc:  Amanda Boyd, BCDC staff attorney, Amanda.boyd@bcdc.ca.gov  

Gregory Earl, ALCHEMISTSGUILD@GMAIL.COM 
Luke Ward, public land management specialist, State Lands Commission, 
Luke.Ward@slc.ca.gov 
Denise Feiling, permit technician II, Solano County Building & Safety Services Division, 
dmfeiling@solanocounty.com    

 
 

  

Docusign Envelope ID: 4373EEE0-C224-4A4F-9D98-B4C942E4F343

mailto:Redvine1960@gmail.com
mailto:ALCHEMISTSGUILD@GMAIL.COM


San Francisco Bay Conservation and Development Commission 
375 Beale Street, Suite 510, San Francisco, California 94105 | Phone 415 352 3600 

State of California | Gavin Newsom – Governor | info@bcdc.ca.gov | www.bcdc.ca.gov 
 

 
BCDC Enforcement File: ER2023.058.00 

Date Mailed: October 15, 2025  
35th Day After Mailing: November 19, 2025   
60th Day After Mailing: December 14, 2025  

Hearing Date: December 10, 2025  
 

Violation Report/Complaint for Administrative Civil Liability Enforcement Case No. 
ER2023.058.00 (Shannon Clemence) 

 Guidance to  
 Respondents 

 

FAILURE TO RESPOND TO THIS VIOLATION REPORT/COMPLAINT FOR ADMINISTRATIVE CIVIL 
LIABILITY BY COMPLETING THE ENCLOSED STATEMENT OF DEFENSE FORM AND ENCLOSING ALL 
PERTINENT DECLARATIONS UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY, PHOTOGRAPHS, LETTERS, AND OTHER 
WRITTEN DOCUMENTS COULD RESULT IN A CEASE AND DESIST ORDER, A PERMIT REVOCATION 
ORDER, OR AN ORDER SETTING ADMINISTRATIVE CIVIL LIABILITY AND IMPOSING A 
SUBSTANTIAL CIVIL PENALTY BEING ISSUED TO YOU WITHOUT YOUR HAVING AN OPPORTUNITY 
TO CONTEST THEM BY RAISING ANY DEFENSES OR MITIGATING FACTORS OR TO INTRODUCE 
ANY EVIDENCE. 

The San Francisco Bay Conservation and Development Commission is issuing this violation 
report/complaint for administrative civil liability and the enclosed statement of defense form 
because the Commission's staff believes that you may be responsible for or involved with a 
possible violation of either the Commission's laws or a Commission permit. The report/complaint 
contains a brief description of the alleged violation, a summary of all the pertinent information 
currently known to staff, and a list of all supporting evidence relied on by staff. All the listed 
supporting evidence is attached to or accompanies this report/complaint or will be provided to 
you in electronic format upon request. You can arrange to review the Commission's enforcement 
file for this matter located at the Commission's offices and/or have copies of these materials 
made at your expense by contacting Anne Usher of the Commission's staff at telephone number 
415-352-3662. The report/complaint informs you of the nature of the possible violation and lists 
the supporting evidence so that you can fill out the enclosed Statement of Defense form and 
otherwise be prepared for the Commission enforcement proceedings. 

Receipt of the report and the enclosed statement of defense form is the first step in Commission 
enforcement proceedings. Subsequently, either the Commission or its enforcement committee 
shall hold an enforcement hearing and the Commission will determine what, if any, enforcement 
action to take. 
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Careful reading and a timely response to these materials are essential to allow you to present 
your side of the case to the Commission. A copy of the Commission's enforcement regulations is 
also included so that you can fully understand the Commission's enforcement procedures. If you 
have any questions concerning either the report/complaint, the enclosed statement of defense 
form, the procedures that the Commission and its enforcement committee follow, or anything 
else pertinent to this matter, contact  Anne Usher of the Commission's staff as quickly as possible 
at telephone number 415-352-3662. Thank you for your cooperation. 

 Violation Report and 
Complaint for Administrative 
Imposition of Civil Penalties 

 

1. Person or persons believed responsible for illegal activity:  

Shannon Clemence 

2. Brief description of the nature of the violation or unauthorized activity:  

In the BCDC’s 100-foot shoreline band jurisdiction, the placement of unauthorized fill: a shed.  

In the BCDC’s Bay jurisdiction, the placement of unauthorized fill: concrete pilings under the 
home, a deck, deck railings, and a deck-bracing substructure.  

3. Description of and location of the property on which the violation or unauthorized 
activity occurred:  

46 Sandy Beach Road, Vallejo, Solano County, APN 0062-020-210 

4. Name of owner, lessee (if any), and other person(s) (if any) who controls property on 
which violation or unauthorized activity occurred:  

Shannon Clemence 

5. Approximate date (and time if pertinent and known) that the violation or unauthorized 
activity occurred:  

BCDC staff confirmed the violation on January 17, 2024.   

6. Summary of all pertinent information currently known to the staff in the form of 
proposed findings of fact with references to all pertinent supporting evidence listed in 
an attachment to the report/complaint: 

i. BCDC received a complaint in an email on Sept. 19, 2023, which the person 
mirrored in a submission through BCDC’s portal the next day. The person alleged 
that Shannon Clemence had built an accessory dwelling unit (ADU) in front of her 
house, extended the deck on the left side of the house and added a support 
structure for it, erected a 6-foot fence, removed and replaced boards on the deck 
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and in the courtyard, installed new deck railings, and added six to eight concrete 
pilings.  

Supporting evidence:  Initial ERF for ER2023.058.00 and emails from complainant 
and their exhibits, “2023.09.19_ClemenceViolationReport1-5.” (VR/1) 

ii. Staff confirmed Ms. Clemence’s ownership of 46 Sandy Beach Road and reviewed 
its parcel lines.    

Supporting evidence: RealQuest database property record, Solano County parcel 
map, and grant deed. (VR/2) 

iii. Investigation continued with a review of Google Earth satellite imagery from 2016 
to 2023. This review showed additional decking between 2016 and 2022 and the 
addition of a shed-like structure between May 2022 and July 2023.  

Supporting evidence: Google Earth images document. (VR/3) 

iv. Staff sent Ms. Clemence an initial contact letter. The letter, on November 20, 
2023, noted the initial report BCDC received and described her alleged violations 
as placing six to eight concrete pilings in the Bay and BCDC’s 100-foot shoreline 
band jurisdiction, placing a shed or similar structure in its 100-foot shoreline band 
jurisdiction, and placing a deck and deck railing cantilevered over the Bay in 
violation of Section 66632(a) of the McAteer-Petris Act. The letter noted that BCDC 
did not authorize any new fill at 46 Sandy Beach Road.  

Supporting evidence: Initial contact letter dated November 20, 2023 (VR/4) 

v. BCDC staff conducted a site visit on January 17, 2024. Ms. Clemence and Gregory 
Earl, her partner, confirmed her placement of the shed, decking and deck railing, 
substructure to support the deck, and new wood beams to hold a paddleboard 
and surfboard. BCDC noted that there were also concrete pilings under the home 
that appeared to constitute a violation. Mr. Earl reached out on her behalf in 
February 2024 and former BCDC Enforcement Policy Manager, Matthew Trujillo, 
provided information to him about how to fill out BCDC’s permit application and 
urged him to seek further guidance from the permitting team.  

Supporting evidence: Site visit photos from January 17, 2024, and email from 
Matthew Trujillo on February 26, 2024.  (VR/5)  

vi. Through correspondence with various other agencies, BCDC staff learned that Ms. 
Clemence’s Solano County construction permits had expired. Email 
correspondence with the United States Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) in 
December 2023 made BCDC aware that Ms. Clemence previously told USACE that 
she did not install new piles on her property, that a narrow deck on the south side 
had been destroyed in a fire in 2018, and that she had initiated a process with 
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Solano County in 2020 to get a permit to reconstruct it. She confirmed that she did 
that work and constructed the shed, noting that it is in an upland area. 

Solano County informed BCDC staff in November 2023 that the permits it had 
issued for her home had expired because she did not request inspections.   

The State Lands Commission (SLC) communicated to Ms. Clemence on April 30, 
2024, via email that the SLC lease assigned to Ms. Clemence prohibited her from 
expanding any existing portion of residence, deck, and appurtenant facilities and 
asked her to contact the SLC regarding removing the unauthorized construction.  

Supporting evidence: November 2, 2023, and December 14, 2023, emails from 
Brian Matsumoto, USACE; a November 3, 2023, email with Denise Feiling, Solano 
County; and a April 30, 2024, email with Vicki Caldwell, SLC, and a copy of the SLC 
lease assigned to Ms. Clemence, dated August 23, 2019. (VR/6)  

vii. Staff issued Ms. Clemence a Notice of Violation on April 2, 2024, based on the staff 
investigation confirming the violations and Ms. Clemence’s failure to apply for and 
obtain an after-the-fact permit authorizing the placement of fill on her property. 

Supporting evidence: Notice of Violation (VR/7) 

viii. Staff gave Ms. Clemence a time extension until June 30, 2024, to secure a permit. 
In a conversation with staff on April 2, 2024, Mr. Earl said that he had been 
working with Solano County’s permit office to obtain permits. He also noted that 
his father had died and staff recommended that he and Ms. Clemence seek and 
extension of the violation notice’s 35-day time limit. On April 7, 2024, Ms. 
Clemence did so, filing an appeal pursuant to 14 CCR Section 11391(b) in which she 
noted that her role as her mother’s caregiver and full-time job also made it 
difficult to meet the deadline. On April 12, 2024, staff supported the request in a 
memorandum to Commission Chair Zack Wasserman and Executive Director Larry 
Goldzband and the request was approved.   

Supporting evidence: Call notes from April 2, 2024, between Matthew Trujillo, 
former Enforcement Analyst Rachel Cohen, and Mr. Earl, and memorandum 
approving the time extension, fully executed on April 15, 2024. (VR/8)  

ix. On June 27, 2024, Ms. Clemence submitted a permit application. On July 10, 2024, 
permitting staff sent Ms. Clemence a letter informing her that the permit 
application was incomplete pending additional information. 

On August 20, 2024, BCDC permitting staff conducted a site visit. Staff found that 
the new deck coverage was greater than Ms. Clemence had outlined in her 
application but said it was unclear how much of the work that was not in the 
application had been done to replace what had burned in the fire. Because it was 
high tide, staff could not determine whether new pilings had been placed and what 
debris existed under the deck but stated that her deck probably does not require 
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them. They added that the shed and retaining wall do not appear to be problems 
from a regulatory perspective. The shed contains no electricity or plumbing, 
making it a storage shed, not an ADU. The report further notes that the after-the-
fact permit request is also for a 64-foot fence.  

Supporting evidence: Ms. Clemence’s permit application, dated June 10, 2024, 
with project information description, a 30-day letter, dated July 10, 2024, and site 
visit notes from August 20, 2024. (VR/9) 

x. Staff followed up with the State Lands Commission. In June 2024, the SLC had 
allowed Ms. Clemence to apply for a lease amendment and told her what she 
needed to submit. That month, Ms. Clemence informed the SLC that before she 
purchased her home, it had sustained significant damage to siding and roofing 
from a fire at a neighboring property, 16 Sandy Beach Road. She noted that past 
owners of 46 Sandy Beach had applied for Solano County construction permits but 
had not closed them out. When she bought the home, she said she sought to 
remove the siding, replace it with fire-retardant siding, and replace a catwalk deck 
with a wider one that could serve as a fire escape—with a ramp for her mother, 
who uses a wheelchair. She said that she did not replace the siding because 
contractors found that it contained asbestos.  

In February 2025, the SLC informed staff that the SLC was going to consider 
amending Ms. Clemence’s lease to allow for the deck addition at its meeting on 
April 2, 2025.  

Supporting evidence:  June 12, 2024, and February 12, 2025, emails with Vicki 
Caldwell and Jennifer Bryant and survey, SLC. (VR/10) 

xi. Staff spoke again with Ms. Clemence and her partner. Mr. Earl said that Ali 
Mahalat Engineering was completing project drawings required for her BCDC 
permit. He explained that a neighbor had done work on Shannon’s house, 
including installing concrete pilings under the home, before she bought it in 2019. 
Regarding the shed, he said the county allowed her to build a 9x9 one on her 
property and did not mention the need to obtain a permit from BCDC.  

Supporting evidence:  Notes from phone conversation on February 6, 2025, and 
February 7, 2025, email from Greg Earl. (VR/11) 

xii. On March 19, 2025, BCDC staff issued Ms. Clemence a Notice of Recission, stating 
that the process of resolving her violations using the standardized fine process is 
no longer available pursuant to BCDC regulation section 11390(d) due to her failure 
to make a good faith effort to correct the identified violations within 125 days of 
the mailing of the Notice of Violation.  

Supporting evidence:  Notice of Recission, dated March 19, 2025. (VR/12) 
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xiii. On September 11, 2025, Ms. Clemence told BCDC staff that she also replaced a 
fence along the parking lot side of her property in September 2020. Ms. Clemence 
said the previous fence had been partially burned by the fire at 16 Sandy Beach 
Road. She acknowledged not seeking and obtaining a BCDC permit for this 
construction.  

Supporting evidence: September 11, 2025, interview with Ms. Clemence and 
Gregory Earl and email from Gregory Earl on September 15, 2025. (VR/13)  

7. Provisions of law or Commission permit that the staff alleges have been violated: 

• McAteer-Petris Act § 66632 (a)     

o “Any person or governmental agency wishing to place fill, to extract 
materials, or to make any substantial change in use of any water, land or 
structure, within the area of the commission's jurisdiction shall secure a 
permit from the commission and, if required by law or by ordinance, from 
any city or county within which any part of the work is to be performed. For 
purposes of this title, “fill” means earth or any other substance or material, 
including pilings or structures placed on pilings, and structures floating at 
some or all times and moored for extended periods, such as houseboats and 
floating docks. For the purposes of this section “materials” means items 
exceeding twenty dollars ($20) in value.”  

8. If the staff is proposing that the Commission impose an administrative civil penalty as 
part of this enforcement proceeding: 

 (FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY: Check this box if no penalty is being proposed at this time. ☐) 

(a) A list or table of all alleged violations for which staff is proposing a penalty: 

Violation One: The placement of unauthorized fill in the Bay and 100-foot shoreline 
jurisdictions, including concrete pilings underneath the home and decking (including a 
deck railing and substructure) and a shed.  

(b) The total amount of proposed administrative civil penalties: 

Violation One: $30,000 

(c) A statement of the applicable factors set forth in Government Code Section 66641.9 
that the Executive Director considered, consistent with the Administrative Civil Penalty 
Policy in Appendix J of the Commission's regulations, in determining the total amount 
of the proposed administrative civil penalties: 

A summary of the penalty calculation methodology used herein is as follows: 
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1) Determined the total initial base penalty amount for each violation by 
evaluating: (a) the gravity of harm of the violation; and (b) the extent of 
deviation from the requirement at issue. Based on those evaluations, use Table 
1 to determine the initial base penalty amount for the violation. Multiply the 
initial base penalty amount by the number of days that the violation has 
persisted to determine the total initial base penalty for the violation. 

2) Adjustments specific to the violator were made to the base penalty amount for 
each violation. The following additional factors were considered for potential 
adjustment of the total initial base penalty for each violation:  

a. the violator's degree of culpability for the violation;  

b. any history of violations by the violator;  

c. any voluntary removal or resolution efforts and cooperation by the 
violator. 

3) The total base penalty amount was determined by calculating the sum for all 
violations of the total initial base penalty amount for each violation (i.e., the 
initial base penalty amount for the violation multiplied by the number of days 
of violation) multiplied for each violation by the percentages of any 
adjustments for the violator's culpability, history of violations, and voluntary 
efforts to resolve the violation. 

4) Considered adjustments to the total base penalty amount based on additional 
factors and determine the final penalty amount. (Depending on the available 
information, the Executive Director may recommend adjusting or the 
Commission may adjust the total base penalty amount based on consideration 
of the following factors: (a) any economic benefit to the violator; (b) the 
violator's ability to pay or continue in business; (c) costs to the State in pursuing 
the enforcement action; (d) other factors as justice may require.) The final 
penalty amount was determined by making any appropriate adjustments to the 
total base penalty amount based on consideration of these additional factors. 

9. Any other statement or information that the staff believes is either pertinent to the 
alleged violation or unauthorized activity or important to a full understanding of the 
alleged violation or unauthorized activity: 

None. 

10. List of all supporting evidence relied on by staff, including any declarations under 
penalty of perjury (these records will be provided to you in electronic format upon 
request): 
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Violation Report 
and Complaint 
(VR/C) Exhibit  

Description  Record Date  

1  
   

Initial Enforcement Report 
Form and emails  

September 19 and 20, 2023 

2  Parcel ownership 
confirmation  

RealQuest: Bought April 30, 2019 
Grant Deed: Signed November 1, 2022  
Parcel Map: Copyright 1996 

3  Google Earth satellite imagery  
 

Images from 2016 to 2023 

4  Initial contact letter  November 20, 2023 
5 Staff site visit and email Site visit: January 17, 2024 

Email from Matthew Trujillo: February 26, 
2024.   

6 USACE, SLC, Solano County 
responses 

Brian Matsumoto, USACE: November 2, 2023 

Denise Feiling, Solano County: November 3, 
2023 

Vicki Caldwell, SLC: April 30, 2024 
7 Notice of violation  April 2, 2024 
8 Time extension granted  April 12, 2024 
9 Permit staff site visit August 20, 2024 
10 Emails with Vicki Caldwell and 

Jennifer Bryant and survey, 
SLC  

Vicki Caldwell: February 11, 2025  

Jennifer Bryant: June 12, 2024  
11 Phone conversation and email 

from Greg Earl   
 February 6 and 7, 2025 

12 Notice of Recission  March 19, 2025 
13 Phone conversation with Mr. 

Earl and Ms. Clemence and 
email with Mr. Earl 

September 11 and 15, 2025  
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BCDC Enforcement Violation Report Form
Submitted by: Anonymous user

Submitted time: Sep 20, 2023, 4:09:23 PM

FormIgnore

Yes

ER#

ER2023.058.00

Permittee or Respondent

SHANNON CLEMENCE

Status

B. Active Case

Enforcement Staff Assigned

RC

Address of the Alleged Violation

46 SANDY BEACH RAOD, VALLEJO, CA 94590

Location of the Alleged Violation

Lat: 38.076167 Lon: -122.239988

Esri, CGIAR, USGS | C…
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County

Solano

Description of the Alleged Violation

NEW ADDITION/ERECTION/CONSTRUCTION OF AN ACCESSORY DWELLING UNIT ("ADU") IN THE FRONT OF 
THE RESIDENCE;  CONSTRUCTION/ERECTION OF A BRAND NEW (ADDITIONAL) DECK/EXTENSION ON THE 
LEFT SIDE OF THE RESIDENCE AND A 6 FOOT FENCE; REMOVAL OF THE ORIGINAL WOOD DECK BOARDS 
AND REPLACEMENT OF DECK BOADS ON THE DECK AND IN THE FRONT COURT YARD OF THE RESIDENCE;
CONSTRUCTION OF A NEW FRAME/SUPPORT STRUCTURE FOR THE DECK EXTENSION UNDERNEATH THE 
RESIDENCE; INSTALLATION OF NEW DECK RAILINGS; INSTALLATION OF  6 - 8 (POSSIBLY MORE) 
CONCRETE PILING UNDERNEATH THE RESIDENCE TO SUPPORT THE DECK, DECK FRAME, AND DECK 
EXTENSION, AS MORE FULLY DESCRIBED IN MY EMAIL DATED 9/19/23 AND 9/20/23 SENT TO RACHEL 
COHEN, ENFORECEMENT ANALYST.

I

Date Report Submitted

Sep 19, 2023

Date ER Case Opened

Oct 13, 2023

Date Assigned

Oct 13, 2023

When did you first observe the Alleged Violation?

Sep 19, 2023

Suspected Duration or Frequency of Violation

Constant

Do you know who the Responsible Party is?

Yes
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Responsible Party's Name (Person and/or Organization)

SHANNON CLEMENCE (THE PROPERTY OWNER) AND GREGORY EARL (HER LIVE-IN BOYFRIEND WHO 
CLAIMS TO BE A SELF EMPLOYED CONTRACTOR/BUILDER)  HE HAS DONE WORK FOR RESIDENTS IN THE 
SANDY BEACH COMMUNITY - CELL: 707/321-3562, EMAIL ADDRESS: ALCHEMISTSGUILD@GMAIL.COM

Responsible Party's Address

46 SANDY BEACH ROAD, VALLEJO, CA 94590    APN 0062-020-210

Responsible Party's Email

REDIVINE1960@GMAIL.COM     

Responsible Party's Phone Number

415 412-6981 CELL PHONE

Can BCDC staff contact you about this report?

Yes

Reporter Name

Micheal A. Thompson

Reporter Address

410 Tuolumne Street, Vallejo, CA  94590

Reporter Email

MICHEALTHOMPSONLAWOFFICE@GMAIL.COM

Reporter Phone Number

707 643-2122

Please indicate if you wish to remain anonymous.

Yes
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Which other agencies, if any, have you contacted about this violation?

RYAN WHITE - SOLANO COUNTY CODE COMPLIANCE OFFICER BUILDIING & SAFETY, DEPARTMENT OF 
RESOURCE MANAGEMENT 675 TEXAS STREET, FAIRFIELD, CA 94533
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Redacted emails from anonymous person submitting initial complaint about construction 
at 46 Sandy Beach Road, Vallejo.  

 

 

Exhibits are attached separately as redacted PDFs to shield their identity. Photos from the 
emails are below.  
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Property Detail Report
For Property Located At :
46 SANDY BEACH RD, VALLEJO, CA 94590-8159

Owner Information
Owner Name: CLEMENCE SHANNON E
Mailing Address: 46 SANDY BEACH RD, VALLEJO CA 94590-8159 C026
Vesting Codes: / /

Location Information
Legal Description: LOT 46 RS 1 1
County: SOLANO, CA APN: 0062-020-210
Census Tract / Block: 2508.01 / 3 Alternate APN:
Township-Range-Sect: Subdivision:
Legal Book/Page: Map Reference: 134-F6 /
Legal Lot: 46 Tract #:
Legal Block: School District: VALLEJO BASIC
Market Area: School District Name: VALLEJO BASIC
Neighbor Code: Munic/Township: UNINCORPORATED

Owner Transfer Information
Recording/Sale Date: 01/27/2023 / 12/02/2022 Deed Type: GRANT DEED
Sale Price: 1st Mtg Document #:
Document #: 3687

Last Market Sale Information
Recording/Sale Date: 05/07/2019 / 04/30/2019 1st Mtg Amount/Type: $397,600 / CONV
Sale Price: $497,000  1st Mtg Int. Rate/Type:  /
Sale Type: FULL 1st Mtg Document #: 26839
Document #: 26837 2nd Mtg Amount/Type: /
Deed Type: GRANT DEED 2nd Mtg Int. Rate/Type: /
Transfer Document #: Price Per SqFt: $414.17
New Construction: Multi/Split Sale:
Title Company: NORTH AMERICAN TITLE
Lender: LAND HM FIN'L SVCS INC
Seller Name: DOPKINS FAMILY TRUST

Prior Sale Information
Prior Rec/Sale Date: / Prior Lender:
Prior Sale Price: Prior 1st Mtg Amt/Type: /
Prior Doc Number: Prior 1st Mtg Rate/Type: /
Prior Deed Type:

Property Characteristics
Gross Area: 1,200 Parking Type: Construction:
Living Area: 1,200 Garage Area: Heat Type: CENTRAL
Tot Adj Area: Garage Capacity: Exterior wall:
Above Grade: Parking Spaces: Porch Type:
Total Rooms: Basement Area: Patio Type:
Bedrooms: 2 Finish Bsmnt Area: Pool:
Bath(F/H): 1 / Basement Type: Air Cond:
Year Built / Eff: 1959 / Roof Type: Style:
Fireplace: Y / Foundation: Quality: AVERAGE
# of Stories: 1 Roof Material: Condition:
Other Improvements:

Site Information
Zoning: Acres: 0.18 County Use: IMPR SINGL FAM RESID

(1000)
Lot Area: 7,840 Lot Width/Depth: x State Use:
Land Use: SFR Res/Comm Units: / Water Type:
Site Influence: Sewer Type:
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Tax Information
Total Value: $532,881 Assessed Year: 2023 Property Tax: $6,852.32
Land Value: $214,439 Improved %: 60% Tax Area: 092003
Improvement Value: $318,442 Tax Year: 2022 Tax Exemption:
Total Taxable Value: $532,881

Street Map Plus Report
For Property Located At

46 SANDY BEACH RD, VALLEJO, CA 94590-8159

*

Imagery ©2023 , Airbus, Maxar Technologies, U.S. Geological Survey,
USDA/FPAC/GEO

50 m  Report a map error
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Google Earth satellite image from 11/3/2016. 

Google Earth satellite image from 5/12/2022 
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A Google Earth image from 7/27/2023 

A Google Earth image from 23/8/2023  (please note the date standard used). 
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 5A5813B4-8A74-40EF-A4D2-2E756879207F 

San Francisco Bay Conservation and Development Commission 
375 Beale Street, Suite 510, San Francisco, California 94105 tel 415 352 3600 fax 888 348 5190 

State of California | Gavin Newsom – Governor | info@bcdc.ca.gov | www.bcdc.ca.gov 

Via Certified and Electronic Mail 

November 20, 2023 

ATTN: Shannon E. Clemence 
46 Sandy Beach Road 
Vallejo, CA 94590 
E-mail: redvine1960@gmail.com

SUBJECT: Initial Contact Letter Regarding Placement of Unauthorized Fill in BCDC’s Bay and 
Shoreline Band Jurisdiction (BCDC Enforcement Case ER2023.058.00) 

Dear Shannon E. Clemence: 

On September 19, 2023, BCDC staff received a report alleging unauthorized activities at 46 
Sandy Beach Road in Vallejo, Solano County (Solano County Assessor’s Parcel Number 0062- 
020-210), as described below.

Alleged Activity: 
This action represents a violation of 
the following statute: 

Placement of approximately 6-8 concrete pilings in 
BCDC’s Bay and 100-foot shoreline band 
jurisdiction. 

Placement of a shed or similar structure in BCDC’s 
100-foot shoreline band jurisdiction.

Placement of decking and deck railing cantilevered 
over the Bay. 

McAteer-Petris Act Section 66632(a). 

The McAteer-Petris Act Section 66632(a) requires that: 

Any person or governmental agency wishing to place fill, to extract 
materials, or to make any substantial change in use of any water, land or 
structure, within the area of the commission’s jurisdiction shall secure a 
permit from the commission and, if required by law or by ordinance, 
from any city or county within which any part of the work is to be 

Exhibit 4

mailto:info@bcdc.ca.gov
https://www.bcdc.ca.gov/
mailto:redvine1960@gmail.com


DocuSign Envelope ID: 5A5813B4-8A74-40EF-A4D2-2E756879207F 

Shannon E. Clemence 
Enf. No. ER 2023.058 . 00 

Page 2 
November 20 , 2023 

performed. For purposes of this title, “fill” means earth or any other 
substance or material, including pilings or structures placed on pilings, 
and structures floating at some or all times and moored for extended 
periods, such as houseboats and floating docks. For the purposes of this 
section “materials” means items exceeding twenty dollars ($20) in value. 

BCDC did not authorize any new fill at this address. This letter serves as notice that BCDC 
believes that violations have occurred, and we have opened BCDC Enforcement Case 
ER2023.058.00. 

Please respond within 15 days of the date of this letter to confirm receipt and provide 
additional information that you believe that we should consider. Please submit this information 
to me at the contact information provided below. 

Pursuant to the McAteer-Petris Act and its regulations, BCDC is authorized to conduct 
enforcement investigations and commence administrative enforcement actions. While this 
letter does not commence a formal enforcement proceeding, we reserve the right to take 
formal action, including imposing fines or penalties. A prompt response will be considered in 
determining the next steps that BCDC pursues. 

Further, while the report we received focused on the activities identified above, we recognize 
the potential that there may be other violations at the site. We urge you to review the 
applicable regulations to your property to ensure you are fully compliant with them. 

Thank you for your attention to this matter. 

Sincerely, 

MATTHEW TRUJILLO 
Enforcement Policy Manager 
San Francisco Bay Conservation and Development Commission 
375 Beale Street, Suite 510 
San Francisco, California 94105 
Tel: 415-352-3633 
Fax: 415-352-3606 
Email: matthew.trujillo@bcdc.ca.gov 
Website: www.bcdc.ca.gov 

cc: (via e-mail only): 
SF Bay Regional Water Quality Control Board, Erin Fairley, erin.fairley@waterboards.ca.gov 
US Army Corps of Engineers, Bryan Matsumoto, bryan.t.matsumoto@usace.army.mil 
CA Dept. of Fish and Wildlife, Sabrina Dunn, sabrina.funn@wildlife.ca.gov 
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CA State Lands Commission, Vicki Caldwell, vicki.caldwell@slc.ca.gov 
Solano County Building Department, Denise Feiling, dmfeiling@solanocounty.com 
Solano County Building Department, building@solanocounty.com 

Encls. 

MT / mm 
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Figure 1, 2. Google Earth imagery of 46 Sandy Beach Road with yellow arrows pointing out the difference in decking 
between 2016 and 2022. 
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Figure 3, 4. Google Earth imagery of 46 Sandy Beach Road with yellow arrows pointing out a shed-like structure 
which BCDC believes was placed between May 2022 and July 2023. 
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From: Trujillo, Matthew@BCDC
To: Cohen, Rachel@BCDC
Subject: FW: Voice Message Attached from 7073213562 - WIRELESS CALLER
Date: Monday, February 26, 2024 2:17:40 PM
Attachments: 7073213562_20240226_111135.wav

Hi Rachel,

I got this voicemail from Gregory Earl today. I called him back and answered questions about the permit form to the
best of my ability. I referred him to info@bcdc.ca.gov for further permit application questions. If he contacts them
and they refer him to you, kick it back to permits and ask them to help him file his application. He wanted to know
about the start and end dates of the project (the deck, shed, pilings) and I said it might be N/A since it's a ATF
approval, but the permit analyst should be able to help. He also wanted to know how much of the project in sq. ft. is
in the shoreline band. I told him the shed is for sure, but that the house might be in the bay depending on when it
was built. (Was this the one that was reconstructed and authorized by a commission order, or am I thinking of
another case?) I told him for the purposes of getting the application in, to just give the square footage for the house
and shed combined and note for the analyst that the jurisdiction of the home is unclear.

Best Regards,

MATTHEW TRUJILLO
Enforcement Policy Manager
(415) 352-3633
Matthew.Trujillo@bcdc.ca.gov
http://bcdc.ca.gov/enforcement

San Francisco Bay Conservation and Development Commission
375 Beale St., Suite 510
San Francisco, CA  94105
FAX: (415) 352-3606
Main Number: (415) 352-3600
Business Days & Hours:
M-F 8:30a – 5:00p

-----Original Message-----
From: voicemessage@mail200.hvs.att.com <voicemessage@mail200.hvs.att.com>
Sent: Monday, February 26, 2024 11:12 AM
To: Matthew Trujillo <4153523633@mail200.hvs.att.com>
Cc: Trujillo, Matthew@BCDC <Matthew.Trujillo@bcdc.ca.gov>
Subject: Voice Message Attached from 7073213562 - WIRELESS CALLER

Time: Feb 26, 2024 11:11:35 AM
Click attachment to listen to Voice Message
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These photos are from a BCDC staff site visit on Jan. 17, 2024.  
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From: Matsumoto, Bryan T CIV USARMY CESPN (USA)
To: redivine1960@gmail.com
Cc: McWhorter, Scott; Squires, Kim; Brian Meux; Fairley, Erin@Waterboards; Dunn, Sabrina@Wildlife; Cohen,

Rachel@BCDC
Subject: Inquiry: 46 Sandy Beach Road (Corps File: SPN-2023-00431)
Date: Thursday, November 2, 2023 2:23:00 PM
Attachments: SPN-2023-00431_ENF_VI_signed_2023.11.02.pdf

SPN-2023-00431_ENF_VI_Investigation_Questionnaire.pdf

Ms. Clemence:

 Please find attached an electronic copy of the Corps’ Notice of Alleged Violation letter along
with an investigation questionnaire.  This inquiry concerns work/structures at 46 Sandy Beach Road
in the City of Vallejo, Solano County.  A hard copy will also be sent by mail.  Please confirm receipt of
this email and feel free to contact me with any questions.

Bryan Matsumoto
Senior Project Manager
USACE, Regulatory Division, North Branch
450 Golden Gate Avenue, 4th Floor, Room 1111
San Francisco, California 94102-3404

Office: 415-503-6786
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DEPARTMENT OF THE ARMY 
SAN FRANCISCO DISTRICT, U.S. ARMY CORPS OF ENGINEERS 


450 GOLDEN GATE AVENUE 
SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 94102 


 
November 2, 2023 


 
Regulatory Division Certified Mail 
 
Subject:  File No. SPN-2023-00431 
 
 


NOTICE OF ALLEGED VIOLATION 
 
 
Shannon Clemence 
46 Sandy Beach Road,  
Vallejo, California 94590 
redivine1960@gmail.com  
 
Dear Ms. Clemence: 


This inquiry concerns an activity for which you may be the responsible party or 
property owner in question. The property is located at 46 Sandy Beach Road in the City 
of Vallejo, Solano County, California; Latitude 38.07619°, Longitude -122.23996°. The 
activity may involve the installation of concrete piles, decking, railing, and an accessory 
dwelling unit occurring in/over the Carquinez Strait and may be in violation of Section 10 
of the Rivers and Harbors Act of 1899 (33 U.S.C. § 403). 


All structures and work occurring below the plane of mean high water in tidal waters 
of the U.S.; in former diked baylands currently below mean high water; outside the limits 
of mean high water but affecting the navigable capacity of tidal waters; or below the 
plane of ordinary high water in non-tidal waters designated as navigable waters of the 
U.S., typically require Department of the Army authorization and the issuance of a 
permit under Section 10 of the Rivers and Harbors Act of 1899. Navigable waters of the 
U.S. generally include all waters subject to the ebb and flow of the tide; and/or all waters 
presently used, or have been used in the past, or may be susceptible for future use to 
transport interstate or foreign commerce. The term "structure" includes, without 
limitation, any pier, boat dock, boat ramp, wharf, dolphin, weir, boom, breakwater, 
bulkhead, revetment, riprap, jetty, artificial island or reef, permanent mooring structure, 
power transmission line, permanently moored floating vessel, piling, or any other 
obstacle or obstruction. The term "structure" does not include bridges and causeways 
constructed in or over navigable or tidal waters of the U.S. since this regulatory 
responsibility has been delegated to the U.S. Coast Guard under the Department of 
Transportation Act of 1966 (Pub. L. No. 89-670). The term "work" includes, without 
limitation, any dredging or disposal of dredged material, filling, or other modification of a 
navigable water of the U.S. 


The provisions of 33 C.F.R. § 326.3 direct the District Engineer to commence an 
initial investigation of any unauthorized work, structures, and associated dredged or fill 
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material discharges in waters of the U.S. to determine the appropriate administrative 
and/or legal actions to be pursued. In the event the alleged violation is subsequently 
confirmed, administrative actions could include a voluntary restoration of the site, an 
order requiring the completion of initial corrective measures to alleviate imminent 
adverse impacts to aquatic resources, and/or the issuance of an after-the-fact 
Department of the Army Permit to authorize any remaining work, structures, and 
dredged or fill material discharges in waters of the U.S. Administrative actions could 
further include the use of Class I or Class II civil fines for violations under Section 404 of 
the Clean Water Act. Legal actions could include the initiation of civil or criminal 
proceedings when circumstances warrant such action. 


Under Section 12 of the Rivers and Harbors Act of 1899 (33 U.S.C. § 406), a person 
convicted of violating Section 10 of the Rivers and Harbors Act may be subject to a 
criminal fine of up to $2,500.00, or imprisonment for up to one year, or both such 
punishments. Section 12 of the Act further authorized the Court to enforce the removal 
of any structure erected in violation of the Act. For the most egregious violations of the 
Act, a person or an organization who violates any provision of the Act may be subject to 
a criminal fine of not more than $100,000.00 or $200,000.00, respectively (or even 
higher in some circumstances) (18 U.S.C. § 3571). 


To facilitate completion of our initial investigation, you are requested to provide this 
office the information specified in the enclosed Investigation Questionnaire within 15 
days of receipt of this letter; this requested information may be held against you in the 
event of any subsequent legal action. You are further requested to contact this office 
within this timeframe to allow Regulatory staff immediate access to your property to 
inspect the area of the alleged violation and to formulate any required resolution. You 
are advised to cease any ongoing work that may be occurring in waters of the U.S. until 
the inspection has been completed. 


You may refer any questions on this matter to me by telephone at (415) 503-6786 or 
by e-mail at Bryan.T.Matsumoto@usace.army.mil. All correspondence should be 
addressed to the Regulatory Division, North Branch, referencing the file number at the 
head of this letter. 


Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
Bryan Matsumoto 
Senior Project Manager 
Regulatory Division 
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Enclosure 


cc: 
US EPA, Scott McWhorter, mcwhorter.scott@epa.gov 
US FWS, Kim Squires, kim_squires@fws.gov  
US NMFS, Brian Meux, brian.meux@noaa.gov  
CA RWQCB, Erin Fairley, erin.fairley@waterboards.ca.gov 
CA DFW, Sabrina Dunn, sabrina.dunn@wildlife.ca.gov  
CA BCDC, Rachel Cohen, rachel.cohen@bcdc.ca.gov  
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INVESTIGATION QUESTIONNAIRE 
U.S. Army Corps of Engineers 


San Francisco District, Regulatory Division 
 


 
File No.  SPN-2023-00431 
 
Date:  November 2, 2023 
 
Addressed To: 
Shannon Clemence 
46 Sandy Beach Road 
Vallejo, CA 94590 
redivine1960@gmail.com  
 
 
1. Property Owner:    
 


Address:     Phone:  ( )  
(Bus.) 


  
 


Address:     Phone:  ( )  
(Res.) 


  
 


E-mail Address:    
 
 
2. Person / contractor doing work:    
 


Company:    
 


Address:     Phone:  ( )  
(Bus.) 


  
 


Address:     Phone:  ( )  
(Res.) 


  
 


E-mail Address:    
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3. Consultant:    
 


Company:    
 


Address:     Phone:  ( )  
 


  
 


E-mail Address:    
 
 
4. Location of Work: 
 


Address:    
 


City:    ST:    ZIP:    
 


County:    
 


 ¼ of   ¼ of Sec.  , R   N / S, T   E / W 
(circle) (circle) 


 
Lat:   ° N Long:   ° W 


 
UTM:  Region     North:     East:    


 
Assessor Parcel Number:    
 
Describe location (relation to towns, roads, buildings, etc.):    


 
  


 
  


 
  


 
  


 
Name of Waterbody, if known:    
 
 
  







5. Details of the Activity: 
 


Prior to this notification, were you aware of this activity taking place?    
 


  
 


When did the activity begin?    
 


  
 


Was the work discontinued?    
 


  
 


Was the work completed?    
 


  
 


Is the work still in progress?    
 


  
 


Please describe the work in detail, including the purpose of the work.    
 


  
 


  
 


  
 


  
 


  
 


Was any fill material imported to the site? (Specify type(s) of material discharged 
and the amount of each type in cubic yards.)    


 
  


 
  


 
How was the material placed (discharged)?    


 
  


 
  







 
Was any grading performed associated with the activity?    


 
  


 
  


 
  


 
Was any discing performed associated with the activity?  Please explain the history 
of discing performed on the site.   


 
  


 
  


 
  


 
Were you ever informed by any other permit issuing agency that a Department of the 
Army permit may be required?   


 
  


 
  


 
  


 
Are you one of the persons responsible for the activity?    


 
  


 
Are you operating a business that is associated with the activity?    


 
  


 
  


 
Is the activity in question supervised by you or by others whom you employ?    


 
  


 
Will you allow Corps of Engineers’ personnel access to the site to verify the nature of 
the activity? 


 
  


  







6. Permits obtained prior to commencement of work: 
 


Department of the Army Permit #:    
 


 When?  
 


CA Department of Fish & Game Permit #:    
 


 When?  
 


CA Regional Water Quality Control Board Permit #:    
 


 When?  
 


Local Permit #:    
 


 When?  
 
 
7. Additional Information: 
 


Please submit any other information and/or photographs which, in your opinion, may 
be pertinent to the Corps of Engineers’ evaluation of the activity and the 
determination on whether the activity occurred in jurisdictional waters of the United 
States.   


 
  


 
  


 
  


 
  


 
  


 
  


 
  


 
  


 
  


 
  







INVESTIGATION QUESTIONNAIRE 
U.S. Army Corps of Engineers 

San Francisco District, Regulatory Division 

File No.  SPN-2023-00431 

Date:  November 2, 2023 

Addressed To: 
Shannon Clemence 
46 Sandy Beach Road 
Vallejo, CA 94590 
redivine1960@gmail.com 

1. Property Owner:

Address:   Phone:  ( ) 
(Bus.)

Address:    Phone:  ( ) 
(Res.) 

E-mail Address:

2. Person / contractor doing work:

Company:

Address:   Phone:  ( ) 
(Bus.)

Address:    Phone:  ( ) 
(Res.) 

E-mail Address:

Exhibit 6

mailto:redivine1960@gmail.com


3. Consultant:    
 

Company:    
 

Address:     Phone:  ( )  
 

  
 

E-mail Address:    
 
 
4. Location of Work: 
 

Address:    
 

City:    ST:    ZIP:    
 

County:    
 

 ¼ of   ¼ of Sec.  , R   N / S, T   E / W 
(circle) (circle) 

 
Lat:   ° N Long:   ° W 

 
UTM:  Region     North:     East:    

 
Assessor Parcel Number:    
 
Describe location (relation to towns, roads, buildings, etc.):    

 
  

 
  

 
  

 
  

 
Name of Waterbody, if known:    
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5. Details of the Activity: 
 

Prior to this notification, were you aware of this activity taking place?    
 

  
 

When did the activity begin?    
 

  
 

Was the work discontinued?    
 

  
 

Was the work completed?    
 

  
 

Is the work still in progress?    
 

  
 

Please describe the work in detail, including the purpose of the work.    
 

  
 

  
 

  
 

  
 

  
 

Was any fill material imported to the site? (Specify type(s) of material discharged 
and the amount of each type in cubic yards.)    

 
  

 
  

 
How was the material placed (discharged)?    
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Was any grading performed associated with the activity?    

 
  

 
  

 
  

 
Was any discing performed associated with the activity?  Please explain the history 
of discing performed on the site.   

 
  

 
  

 
  

 
Were you ever informed by any other permit issuing agency that a Department of the 
Army permit may be required?   

 
  

 
  

 
  

 
Are you one of the persons responsible for the activity?    

 
  

 
Are you operating a business that is associated with the activity?    

 
  

 
  

 
Is the activity in question supervised by you or by others whom you employ?    

 
  

 
Will you allow Corps of Engineers’ personnel access to the site to verify the nature of 
the activity? 
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6. Permits obtained prior to commencement of work: 
 

Department of the Army Permit #:    
 

 When?  
 

CA Department of Fish & Game Permit #:    
 

 When?  
 

CA Regional Water Quality Control Board Permit #:    
 

 When?  
 

Local Permit #:    
 

 When?  
 
 
7. Additional Information: 
 

Please submit any other information and/or photographs which, in your opinion, may 
be pertinent to the Corps of Engineers’ evaluation of the activity and the 
determination on whether the activity occurred in jurisdictional waters of the United 
States.   
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From: Feiling, Denise M.
To: Cohen, Rachel@BCDC; Millea, John D.
Cc: Kauffman, Nicole C.
Subject: RE: 46 Sandy Beach Road Permits
Date: Friday, November 3, 2023 2:55:03 PM
Attachments: image001.jpg

Building Permit (1).pdf
Building Permit (2).pdf
Building Permit (8).pdf
Building Permit.pdf
B2018-0868.pdf

Hello Rachel,
 
I have attached copies of the issued building permits you requested. All of the permits at this site are
expired due to no inspections requested.
The only plans I was able to locate are for B2018-0868 and those are attached but was not on your
list.
 
Please let me know if I can be of further assistance.
Thank you,

Denise M. Feiling
Building Permit Technician II
County of Solano Building Division
675 Texas Street, Suite 5500
Fairfield, CA 94533
Bldg (707) 784-6765
dmfeiling@solanocounty.com
www.solanocounty.com      
Solano County Logo (Green and Black)

 
 

From: Cohen, Rachel@BCDC <rachel.cohen@bcdc.ca.gov> 
Sent: Thursday, November 2, 2023 2:20 PM
To: Millea, John D. <JDMillea@SolanoCounty.com>
Cc: Building <Building@solanocounty.com>
Subject: 46 Sandy Beach Road Permits
 
Hi John,
 
This is Rachel Cohen from BCDC’s enforcement unit – you helped me back in August by
sending me a permit file for 16 Sandy Beach Road in Vallejo. We’ve now received a report for
the neighboring property, 46 Sandy Beach Road, stating that the owner placed new pilings, an
accessory dwelling unit, new deck and railing. I saw the County issued the below mentioned
permits for some of this work – would you or someone in your office be able to email me
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Job Address: 46 SANDY BEACH ROAD Parcel No.: 0062020210 Valuation: $2,000.00


Description: 48" wide  x 53' long extension to perimeter catwalk on side of dwelling/ access for replacing siding and evacuation 
access **7/14/22: Expired


Owner: CLEMENCE SHANNON
46 SANDY BEACH RD
VALLEJO CA


Contractor:


Licensed Contractor Declaration


I hereby affirm that I am licensed under provisions of Chapter 9 (commencing with Section 7000) of Division of the Business and Professions Code, and my License is 
in full force and effect.           


Owner/Builder Declaration


I hereby affirm that I am exempt from the Contractor's License law for the reason:
[  ] I, as owner of the property, or my employee with wages as the sole compensation, will do the work, and the structure is not intended or offered for sale (Section 7044, 
Business and Professions Code).
[  ] I, as owner of the property, am exclusively contracting with licensed contractors to construct the project Section 7044, Business and
[  ] Owner-Builder intends to perform work and the structure is intended or offered for sale, the applicant must apply with the following conditions:
1. The structure is his or her principal place of residence.
2. He or she has resided in the residence for the past 12 months prior to the work.
3. He or she has not availed his or herself of this exemption on more than two structures more than once during any three-year period.
[  ] I am exempt under sec. ______________. B&PC for this reason___________________________________________________________________


Worker's Compensation Declaration


I hereby affirm that I have a certificate of Worker's Compensation Insurance, (Section 3800, Lab.C.)  


Certificate of Exemption From Workers' Compensation Insurance


I certify that in the performance of the work for which this permit is issued, I shall not employ any person in any manner so as to become subject to Worker's 
Compensation Laws of California.


Date_________________________   Signature___________________________________________________________________________________
Notice to Applicant: If, after making this Certificate of Exemption, you should become subject to Worker's Compensation provision of the Labor Code, you must 
forthwith comply with such provision or this permit shall be deemed revoked.


Division of Industrial Safety Permit Classification


[  ] As Owner/Builder, I will not perform or employ anyone to do work which would require a permit from the Division of Industrial Safety, unless such person has a 
permit to do such work from the division.
[  ] Division of Industrial Safety Permit Number_____________________________________


Air Quality Permit Certificate


[  ] I hereby affirm that I am not installing nor modifying any equipment which may cause air pollution.
[  ] My Air Quality Management District Authority to Construct permit number is___________________________________


Hazardous Materials and Waste Management


[  ] I have read the Hazardous Material Information Guide and understand my requirement under Chapter 6.95 of the California Health and Safety Code Section 25505, 
25533, and 25534. **I understand that if the building does not currently have a tenant, that it is my responsibility to notify the occupant of the requirements which must 
be met prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy. I certify that I have read this application and state that the information is correct. I agree to comply with all county 
ordinances and state laws relating to building construction, and hereby authorize representatives of the county to enter the above property for inspection purposes. 
[  ] I will submit a Construction and Demolition Waste Management Plan and/or Report, with receipts, documenting complance with State Law to divert a minimum of 
65% of non-hazardous waste from landfills through recycling or re-use.


Applicants Signature_______________________________________________________________________            Date________________________


Status: Expired Applied Date: 1/29/2021 Issued Date: Expires Date:


Date_________________________Signature__________________________________________________________________________________


License# License Class Expiration Date


Date_________________________Signature__________________________________________________________________________________


Policy Number Expiration Date


Date_________________________Signature__________________________________________________________________________________


Insurance Co.


 DEPARTMENT OF RESOURCE MANAGEMENT
BUILDING & SAFETY SERVICES


675 TEXAS ST., SUITE 5500
FAIRFIELD, CA 94533


Office Number: (707) 784-6765
24 Hour Inspection Request Line: (707) 784-4750


Permit Issued By:Permit No:BUILDING PERMIT B2021-0107








Job Address: 46 SANDY BEACH ROAD Parcel No.: 0062020210 Valuation: $25,000.00


Description: Interior alteration to existing bathroom addition of second bathroom. NO structural changes. No changes to building 
envelope or exterior.


Owner: CLEMENCE SHANNON
46 SANDY BEACH RD
VALLEJO CA


Contractor:


Licensed Contractor Declaration


I hereby affirm that I am licensed under provisions of Chapter 9 (commencing with Section 7000) of Division of the Business and Professions Code, and my License is 
in full force and effect.           


Owner/Builder Declaration


I hereby affirm that I am exempt from the Contractor's License law for the reason:
[  ] I, as owner of the property, or my employee with wages as the sole compensation, will do the work, and the structure is not intended or offered for sale (Section 7044, 
Business and Professions Code).
[  ] I, as owner of the property, am exclusively contracting with licensed contractors to construct the project Section 7044, Business and
[  ] Owner-Builder intends to perform work and the structure is intended or offered for sale, the applicant must apply with the following conditions:
1. The structure is his or her principal place of residence.
2. He or she has resided in the residence for the past 12 months prior to the work.
3. He or she has not availed his or herself of this exemption on more than two structures more than once during any three-year period.
[  ] I am exempt under sec. ______________. B&PC for this reason___________________________________________________________________


Worker's Compensation Declaration


I hereby affirm that I have a certificate of Worker's Compensation Insurance, (Section 3800, Lab.C.)  


Certificate of Exemption From Workers' Compensation Insurance


I certify that in the performance of the work for which this permit is issued, I shall not employ any person in any manner so as to become subject to Worker's 
Compensation Laws of California.


Date_________________________   Signature___________________________________________________________________________________
Notice to Applicant: If, after making this Certificate of Exemption, you should become subject to Worker's Compensation provision of the Labor Code, you must 
forthwith comply with such provision or this permit shall be deemed revoked.


Division of Industrial Safety Permit Classification


[  ] As Owner/Builder, I will not perform or employ anyone to do work which would require a permit from the Division of Industrial Safety, unless such person has a 
permit to do such work from the division.
[  ] Division of Industrial Safety Permit Number_____________________________________


Air Quality Permit Certificate


[  ] I hereby affirm that I am not installing nor modifying any equipment which may cause air pollution.
[  ] My Air Quality Management District Authority to Construct permit number is___________________________________


Hazardous Materials and Waste Management


[  ] I have read the Hazardous Material Information Guide and understand my requirement under Chapter 6.95 of the California Health and Safety Code Section 25505, 
25533, and 25534. **I understand that if the building does not currently have a tenant, that it is my responsibility to notify the occupant of the requirements which must 
be met prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy. I certify that I have read this application and state that the information is correct. I agree to comply with all county 
ordinances and state laws relating to building construction, and hereby authorize representatives of the county to enter the above property for inspection purposes. 
[  ] I will submit a Construction and Demolition Waste Management Plan and/or Report, with receipts, documenting complance with State Law to divert a minimum of 
65% of non-hazardous waste from landfills through recycling or re-use.


Applicants Signature_______________________________________________________________________            Date________________________


Status: Expired Applied Date: 6/17/2022 Issued Date: 7/15/2022 Expires Date: 7/14/2024


Date_________________________Signature__________________________________________________________________________________


License# License Class Expiration Date


Date_________________________Signature__________________________________________________________________________________


Policy Number Expiration Date


Date_________________________Signature__________________________________________________________________________________


Insurance Co.


 DEPARTMENT OF RESOURCE MANAGEMENT
BUILDING & SAFETY SERVICES


675 TEXAS ST., SUITE 5500
FAIRFIELD, CA 94533


Office Number: (707) 784-6765
24 Hour Inspection Request Line: (707) 784-4750


Permit Issued By:Permit No: Denise FeilingBUILDING PERMIT B2022-0536








Job Address: 46 SANDY BEACH ROAD Parcel No.: 0062020210 Valuation: $4,200.00


Description: Replace deck floor boards, stairway and handrails damaged by fire in like for like configuration.


Owner: DOPKINS DONALD G & JANET M TR
46 SANDY BEACH RD
VALLEJO CA


Contractor:


Licensed Contractor Declaration


I hereby affirm that I am licensed under provisions of Chapter 9 (commencing with Section 7000) of Division of the Business and Professions Code, and my License is 
in full force and effect.           


Owner/Builder Declaration


I hereby affirm that I am exempt from the Contractor's License law for the reason:
[  ] I, as owner of the property, or my employee with wages as the sole compensation, will do the work, and the structure is not intended or offered for sale (Section 7044, 
Business and Professions Code).
[  ] I, as owner of the property, am exclusively contracting with licensed contractors to construct the project Section 7044, Business and
[  ] Owner-Builder intends to perform work and the structure is intended or offered for sale, the applicant must apply with the following conditions:
1. The structure is his or her principal place of residence.
2. He or she has resided in the residence for the past 12 months prior to the work.
3. He or she has not availed his or herself of this exemption on more than two structures more than once during any three-year period.
[  ] I am exempt under sec. ______________. B&PC for this reason___________________________________________________________________


Worker's Compensation Declaration


I hereby affirm that I have a certificate of Worker's Compensation Insurance, (Section 3800, Lab.C.)  


Certificate of Exemption From Workers' Compensation Insurance


I certify that in the performance of the work for which this permit is issued, I shall not employ any person in any manner so as to become subject to Worker's 
Compensation Laws of California.


Date_________________________   Signature___________________________________________________________________________________
Notice to Applicant: If, after making this Certificate of Exemption, you should become subject to Worker's Compensation provision of the Labor Code, you must 
forthwith comply with such provision or this permit shall be deemed revoked.


Division of Industrial Safety Permit Classification


[  ] As Owner/Builder, I will not perform or employ anyone to do work which would require a permit from the Division of Industrial Safety, unless such person has a 
permit to do such work from the division.
[  ] Division of Industrial Safety Permit Number_____________________________________


Air Quality Permit Certificate


[  ] I hereby affirm that I am not installing nor modifying any equipment which may cause air pollution.
[  ] My Air Quality Management District Authority to Construct permit number is___________________________________


Hazardous Materials and Waste Management


[  ] I have read the Hazardous Material Information Guide and understand my requirement under Chapter 6.95 of the California Health and Safety Code Section 25505, 
25533, and 25534. **I understand that if the building does not currently have a tenant, that it is my responsibility to notify the occupant of the requirements which must 
be met prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy. I certify that I have read this application and state that the information is correct. I agree to comply with all county 
ordinances and state laws relating to building construction, and hereby authorize representatives of the county to enter the above property for inspection purposes. 
[  ] I will submit a Construction and Demolition Waste Management Plan and/or Report, with receipts, documenting complance with State Law to divert a minimum of 
65% of non-hazardous waste from landfills through recycling or re-use.


Applicants Signature_______________________________________________________________________            Date________________________


Status: Expired Applied Date: 11/15/2018 Issued Date: 11/15/2018 Expires Date: 11/14/2020


Date_________________________Signature__________________________________________________________________________________


License# 733683 License Class B Expiration Date 3/31/2019


Date_________________________Signature__________________________________________________________________________________


Policy Number Expiration Date


Date_________________________Signature__________________________________________________________________________________


Insurance Co.


 DEPARTMENT OF RESOURCE MANAGEMENT
BUILDING & SAFETY SERVICES


675 TEXAS ST., SUITE 5500
FAIRFIELD, CA 94533


Office Number: (707) 784-6765
24 Hour Inspection Request Line: (707) 784-4750


Permit Issued By:Permit No: Trevor SlevinBUILDING PERMIT B2018-0868


WILLIAM DOTY CONSTRUCTION
P O BOX 522
CROCKETT, CA 94525








Job Address: 46 SANDY BEACH ROAD Parcel No.: 0062020210 Valuation: $25,000.00


Description: REPLACE EXTERIOR SIDING


Owner: CLEMENCE SHANNON
46 SANDY BEACH RD
VALLEJO CA


Contractor:


Licensed Contractor Declaration


I hereby affirm that I am licensed under provisions of Chapter 9 (commencing with Section 7000) of Division of the Business and Professions Code, and my License is 
in full force and effect.           


Owner/Builder Declaration


I hereby affirm that I am exempt from the Contractor's License law for the reason:
[  ] I, as owner of the property, or my employee with wages as the sole compensation, will do the work, and the structure is not intended or offered for sale (Section 7044, 
Business and Professions Code).
[  ] I, as owner of the property, am exclusively contracting with licensed contractors to construct the project Section 7044, Business and
[  ] Owner-Builder intends to perform work and the structure is intended or offered for sale, the applicant must apply with the following conditions:
1. The structure is his or her principal place of residence.
2. He or she has resided in the residence for the past 12 months prior to the work.
3. He or she has not availed his or herself of this exemption on more than two structures more than once during any three-year period.
[  ] I am exempt under sec. ______________. B&PC for this reason___________________________________________________________________


Worker's Compensation Declaration


I hereby affirm that I have a certificate of Worker's Compensation Insurance, (Section 3800, Lab.C.)  


Certificate of Exemption From Workers' Compensation Insurance


I certify that in the performance of the work for which this permit is issued, I shall not employ any person in any manner so as to become subject to Worker's 
Compensation Laws of California.


Date_________________________   Signature___________________________________________________________________________________
Notice to Applicant: If, after making this Certificate of Exemption, you should become subject to Worker's Compensation provision of the Labor Code, you must 
forthwith comply with such provision or this permit shall be deemed revoked.


Division of Industrial Safety Permit Classification


[  ] As Owner/Builder, I will not perform or employ anyone to do work which would require a permit from the Division of Industrial Safety, unless such person has a 
permit to do such work from the division.
[  ] Division of Industrial Safety Permit Number_____________________________________


Air Quality Permit Certificate


[  ] I hereby affirm that I am not installing nor modifying any equipment which may cause air pollution.
[  ] My Air Quality Management District Authority to Construct permit number is___________________________________


Hazardous Materials and Waste Management


[  ] I have read the Hazardous Material Information Guide and understand my requirement under Chapter 6.95 of the California Health and Safety Code Section 25505, 
25533, and 25534. **I understand that if the building does not currently have a tenant, that it is my responsibility to notify the occupant of the requirements which must 
be met prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy. I certify that I have read this application and state that the information is correct. I agree to comply with all county 
ordinances and state laws relating to building construction, and hereby authorize representatives of the county to enter the above property for inspection purposes. 
[  ] I will submit a Construction and Demolition Waste Management Plan and/or Report, with receipts, documenting complance with State Law to divert a minimum of 
65% of non-hazardous waste from landfills through recycling or re-use.


Applicants Signature_______________________________________________________________________            Date________________________


Status: Expired Applied Date: 1/14/2021 Issued Date: 3/30/2022 Expires Date: 3/29/2024


Date_________________________Signature__________________________________________________________________________________


License# License Class Expiration Date


Date_________________________Signature__________________________________________________________________________________


Policy Number Expiration Date


Date_________________________Signature__________________________________________________________________________________


Insurance Co.


 DEPARTMENT OF RESOURCE MANAGEMENT
BUILDING & SAFETY SERVICES


675 TEXAS ST., SUITE 5500
FAIRFIELD, CA 94533


Office Number: (707) 784-6765
24 Hour Inspection Request Line: (707) 784-4750


Permit Issued By:Permit No: Avril RockwoodBUILDING PERMIT B2021-0044
































copies of these permits and the building plans associated with them? It would be most helpful
to aid our enforcement case.
 

06/17/2022 B2022-0536 Building Permit

Interior alteration to existing bathroom
addition of second bathroom. NO
structural changes. No changes to
building envelope or exterior.

01/29/2021 B2021-0107 Building Permit

48" wide x 53' long extension to
perimeter catwalk on side of dwelling/
access for replacing siding and
evacuation access **7/14/22: Expired

01/14/2021 B2021-0044 Building Permit REPLACE EXTERIOR SIDING

11/15/2018 B2018-0868 Building Permit
Replace deck floor boards, stairway and
handrails damaged by fire in like for like
configuration.

 
Thanks very much,
Rachel
 
Rachel Cohen (she/her)

Enforcement Analyst
SF Bay Conservation and Development Commission (BCDC)
Direct: 415-352-3661
Main: 415-352-3600
 
[EXTERNAL Email Notice!] External communication is important to us. Be cautious of phishing attempts. Do not
click or open suspicious links or attachments.

 

Exhibit 6

https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__aca-2Dprod.accela.com_SOLANO_Cap_CapDetail.aspx-3FModule-3DBuilding-26TabName-3DBuilding-26capID1-3D22CAP-26capID2-3D00000-26capID3-3D000ZC-26agencyCode-3DSOLANO-26IsToShowInspection-3D&d=DwMFAg&c=e71KFwQiz1Uq9SWN1ahPySYgwkr698SChpwjtuH1HMQ&r=NcOCVaF7sloA0MylX5cpFDx_azxjRQeQCEsmirIpWOw&m=yuQMGdsa034-iqpiWQCOVRv-VZEVqkF74MgVNEv-yFz9tohQ1D_MSWLm91LAsUpq&s=Rzzb9ZSKsn2UnoVEdQmLG_NeqvUojzFAmkdu08dDdKo&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__aca-2Dprod.accela.com_SOLANO_Cap_CapDetail.aspx-3FModule-3DBuilding-26TabName-3DBuilding-26capID1-3D21CAP-26capID2-3D00000-26capID3-3D0005D-26agencyCode-3DSOLANO-26IsToShowInspection-3D&d=DwMFAg&c=e71KFwQiz1Uq9SWN1ahPySYgwkr698SChpwjtuH1HMQ&r=NcOCVaF7sloA0MylX5cpFDx_azxjRQeQCEsmirIpWOw&m=yuQMGdsa034-iqpiWQCOVRv-VZEVqkF74MgVNEv-yFz9tohQ1D_MSWLm91LAsUpq&s=1QuHnbwk8F7FEp_RPjYJ3F-1C23s4pbYugu-yDm-VQc&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__aca-2Dprod.accela.com_SOLANO_Cap_CapDetail.aspx-3FModule-3DBuilding-26TabName-3DBuilding-26capID1-3D21CAP-26capID2-3D00000-26capID3-3D00028-26agencyCode-3DSOLANO-26IsToShowInspection-3D&d=DwMFAg&c=e71KFwQiz1Uq9SWN1ahPySYgwkr698SChpwjtuH1HMQ&r=NcOCVaF7sloA0MylX5cpFDx_azxjRQeQCEsmirIpWOw&m=yuQMGdsa034-iqpiWQCOVRv-VZEVqkF74MgVNEv-yFz9tohQ1D_MSWLm91LAsUpq&s=yqO1tlXXwZZ4tiMyI5u50yzmS_oaawlOOKltfeQ-I4s&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__aca-2Dprod.accela.com_SOLANO_Cap_CapDetail.aspx-3FModule-3DBuilding-26TabName-3DBuilding-26capID1-3D18CAP-26capID2-3D00000-26capID3-3D001DF-26agencyCode-3DSOLANO-26IsToShowInspection-3D&d=DwMFAg&c=e71KFwQiz1Uq9SWN1ahPySYgwkr698SChpwjtuH1HMQ&r=NcOCVaF7sloA0MylX5cpFDx_azxjRQeQCEsmirIpWOw&m=yuQMGdsa034-iqpiWQCOVRv-VZEVqkF74MgVNEv-yFz9tohQ1D_MSWLm91LAsUpq&s=a0rIvAu6pwbGy_vCnmh7T7FH1i3LtK-7dZz7wtySNb4&e=


Job Address: 46 SANDY BEACH ROAD Parcel No.: 0062020210 Valuation: $2,000.00

Description: 48" wide  x 53' long extension to perimeter catwalk on side of dwelling/ access for replacing siding and evacuation 
access **7/14/22: Expired

Owner: CLEMENCE SHANNON
46 SANDY BEACH RD
VALLEJO CA

Contractor:

Licensed Contractor Declaration

I hereby affirm that I am licensed under provisions of Chapter 9 (commencing with Section 7000) of Division of the Business and Professions Code, and my License is 
in full force and effect.           

Owner/Builder Declaration

I hereby affirm that I am exempt from the Contractor's License law for the reason:
[  ] I, as owner of the property, or my employee with wages as the sole compensation, will do the work, and the structure is not intended or offered for sale (Section 7044, 
Business and Professions Code).
[  ] I, as owner of the property, am exclusively contracting with licensed contractors to construct the project Section 7044, Business and
[  ] Owner-Builder intends to perform work and the structure is intended or offered for sale, the applicant must apply with the following conditions:
1. The structure is his or her principal place of residence.
2. He or she has resided in the residence for the past 12 months prior to the work.
3. He or she has not availed his or herself of this exemption on more than two structures more than once during any three-year period.
[  ] I am exempt under sec. ______________. B&PC for this reason___________________________________________________________________

Worker's Compensation Declaration

I hereby affirm that I have a certificate of Worker's Compensation Insurance, (Section 3800, Lab.C.)  

Certificate of Exemption From Workers' Compensation Insurance

I certify that in the performance of the work for which this permit is issued, I shall not employ any person in any manner so as to become subject to Worker's 
Compensation Laws of California.

Date_________________________   Signature___________________________________________________________________________________
Notice to Applicant: If, after making this Certificate of Exemption, you should become subject to Worker's Compensation provision of the Labor Code, you must 
forthwith comply with such provision or this permit shall be deemed revoked.

Division of Industrial Safety Permit Classification

[  ] As Owner/Builder, I will not perform or employ anyone to do work which would require a permit from the Division of Industrial Safety, unless such person has a 
permit to do such work from the division.
[  ] Division of Industrial Safety Permit Number_____________________________________

Air Quality Permit Certificate

[  ] I hereby affirm that I am not installing nor modifying any equipment which may cause air pollution.
[  ] My Air Quality Management District Authority to Construct permit number is___________________________________

Hazardous Materials and Waste Management

[  ] I have read the Hazardous Material Information Guide and understand my requirement under Chapter 6.95 of the California Health and Safety Code Section 25505, 
25533, and 25534. **I understand that if the building does not currently have a tenant, that it is my responsibility to notify the occupant of the requirements which must 
be met prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy. I certify that I have read this application and state that the information is correct. I agree to comply with all county 
ordinances and state laws relating to building construction, and hereby authorize representatives of the county to enter the above property for inspection purposes. 
[  ] I will submit a Construction and Demolition Waste Management Plan and/or Report, with receipts, documenting complance with State Law to divert a minimum of 
65% of non-hazardous waste from landfills through recycling or re-use.

Applicants Signature_______________________________________________________________________            Date________________________

Status: Expired Applied Date: 1/29/2021 Issued Date: Expires Date:

Date_________________________Signature__________________________________________________________________________________

License# License Class Expiration Date

Date_________________________Signature__________________________________________________________________________________

Policy Number Expiration Date

Date_________________________Signature__________________________________________________________________________________

Insurance Co.

 DEPARTMENT OF RESOURCE MANAGEMENT
BUILDING & SAFETY SERVICES

675 TEXAS ST., SUITE 5500
FAIRFIELD, CA 94533

Office Number: (707) 784-6765
24 Hour Inspection Request Line: (707) 784-4750

Permit Issued By:Permit No:BUILDING PERMIT B2021-0107

Exhibit 6



Job Address: 46 SANDY BEACH ROAD Parcel No.: 0062020210 Valuation: $25,000.00

Description: Interior alteration to existing bathroom addition of second bathroom. NO structural changes. No changes to building 
envelope or exterior.

Owner: CLEMENCE SHANNON
46 SANDY BEACH RD
VALLEJO CA

Contractor:

Licensed Contractor Declaration

I hereby affirm that I am licensed under provisions of Chapter 9 (commencing with Section 7000) of Division of the Business and Professions Code, and my License is 
in full force and effect.           

Owner/Builder Declaration

I hereby affirm that I am exempt from the Contractor's License law for the reason:
[  ] I, as owner of the property, or my employee with wages as the sole compensation, will do the work, and the structure is not intended or offered for sale (Section 7044, 
Business and Professions Code).
[  ] I, as owner of the property, am exclusively contracting with licensed contractors to construct the project Section 7044, Business and
[  ] Owner-Builder intends to perform work and the structure is intended or offered for sale, the applicant must apply with the following conditions:
1. The structure is his or her principal place of residence.
2. He or she has resided in the residence for the past 12 months prior to the work.
3. He or she has not availed his or herself of this exemption on more than two structures more than once during any three-year period.
[  ] I am exempt under sec. ______________. B&PC for this reason___________________________________________________________________

Worker's Compensation Declaration

I hereby affirm that I have a certificate of Worker's Compensation Insurance, (Section 3800, Lab.C.)  

Certificate of Exemption From Workers' Compensation Insurance

I certify that in the performance of the work for which this permit is issued, I shall not employ any person in any manner so as to become subject to Worker's 
Compensation Laws of California.

Date_________________________   Signature___________________________________________________________________________________
Notice to Applicant: If, after making this Certificate of Exemption, you should become subject to Worker's Compensation provision of the Labor Code, you must 
forthwith comply with such provision or this permit shall be deemed revoked.

Division of Industrial Safety Permit Classification

[  ] As Owner/Builder, I will not perform or employ anyone to do work which would require a permit from the Division of Industrial Safety, unless such person has a 
permit to do such work from the division.
[  ] Division of Industrial Safety Permit Number_____________________________________

Air Quality Permit Certificate

[  ] I hereby affirm that I am not installing nor modifying any equipment which may cause air pollution.
[  ] My Air Quality Management District Authority to Construct permit number is___________________________________

Hazardous Materials and Waste Management

[  ] I have read the Hazardous Material Information Guide and understand my requirement under Chapter 6.95 of the California Health and Safety Code Section 25505, 
25533, and 25534. **I understand that if the building does not currently have a tenant, that it is my responsibility to notify the occupant of the requirements which must 
be met prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy. I certify that I have read this application and state that the information is correct. I agree to comply with all county 
ordinances and state laws relating to building construction, and hereby authorize representatives of the county to enter the above property for inspection purposes. 
[  ] I will submit a Construction and Demolition Waste Management Plan and/or Report, with receipts, documenting complance with State Law to divert a minimum of 
65% of non-hazardous waste from landfills through recycling or re-use.

Applicants Signature_______________________________________________________________________            Date________________________

Status: Expired Applied Date: 6/17/2022 Issued Date: 7/15/2022 Expires Date: 7/14/2024

Date_________________________Signature__________________________________________________________________________________

License# License Class Expiration Date

Date_________________________Signature__________________________________________________________________________________

Policy Number Expiration Date

Date_________________________Signature__________________________________________________________________________________

Insurance Co.

 DEPARTMENT OF RESOURCE MANAGEMENT
BUILDING & SAFETY SERVICES

675 TEXAS ST., SUITE 5500
FAIRFIELD, CA 94533

Office Number: (707) 784-6765
24 Hour Inspection Request Line: (707) 784-4750

Permit Issued By:Permit No: Denise FeilingBUILDING PERMIT B2022-0536

Exhibit 6



Job Address: 46 SANDY BEACH ROAD Parcel No.: 0062020210 Valuation: $4,200.00

Description: Replace deck floor boards, stairway and handrails damaged by fire in like for like configuration.

Owner: DOPKINS DONALD G & JANET M TR
46 SANDY BEACH RD
VALLEJO CA

Contractor:

Licensed Contractor Declaration

I hereby affirm that I am licensed under provisions of Chapter 9 (commencing with Section 7000) of Division of the Business and Professions Code, and my License is 
in full force and effect.           

Owner/Builder Declaration

I hereby affirm that I am exempt from the Contractor's License law for the reason:
[  ] I, as owner of the property, or my employee with wages as the sole compensation, will do the work, and the structure is not intended or offered for sale (Section 7044, 
Business and Professions Code).
[  ] I, as owner of the property, am exclusively contracting with licensed contractors to construct the project Section 7044, Business and
[  ] Owner-Builder intends to perform work and the structure is intended or offered for sale, the applicant must apply with the following conditions:
1. The structure is his or her principal place of residence.
2. He or she has resided in the residence for the past 12 months prior to the work.
3. He or she has not availed his or herself of this exemption on more than two structures more than once during any three-year period.
[  ] I am exempt under sec. ______________. B&PC for this reason___________________________________________________________________

Worker's Compensation Declaration

I hereby affirm that I have a certificate of Worker's Compensation Insurance, (Section 3800, Lab.C.)  

Certificate of Exemption From Workers' Compensation Insurance

I certify that in the performance of the work for which this permit is issued, I shall not employ any person in any manner so as to become subject to Worker's 
Compensation Laws of California.

Date_________________________   Signature___________________________________________________________________________________
Notice to Applicant: If, after making this Certificate of Exemption, you should become subject to Worker's Compensation provision of the Labor Code, you must 
forthwith comply with such provision or this permit shall be deemed revoked.

Division of Industrial Safety Permit Classification

[  ] As Owner/Builder, I will not perform or employ anyone to do work which would require a permit from the Division of Industrial Safety, unless such person has a 
permit to do such work from the division.
[  ] Division of Industrial Safety Permit Number_____________________________________

Air Quality Permit Certificate

[  ] I hereby affirm that I am not installing nor modifying any equipment which may cause air pollution.
[  ] My Air Quality Management District Authority to Construct permit number is___________________________________

Hazardous Materials and Waste Management

[  ] I have read the Hazardous Material Information Guide and understand my requirement under Chapter 6.95 of the California Health and Safety Code Section 25505, 
25533, and 25534. **I understand that if the building does not currently have a tenant, that it is my responsibility to notify the occupant of the requirements which must 
be met prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy. I certify that I have read this application and state that the information is correct. I agree to comply with all county 
ordinances and state laws relating to building construction, and hereby authorize representatives of the county to enter the above property for inspection purposes. 
[  ] I will submit a Construction and Demolition Waste Management Plan and/or Report, with receipts, documenting complance with State Law to divert a minimum of 
65% of non-hazardous waste from landfills through recycling or re-use.

Applicants Signature_______________________________________________________________________            Date________________________

Status: Expired Applied Date: 11/15/2018 Issued Date: 11/15/2018 Expires Date: 11/14/2020

Date_________________________Signature__________________________________________________________________________________

License# 733683 License Class B Expiration Date 3/31/2019

Date_________________________Signature__________________________________________________________________________________

Policy Number Expiration Date

Date_________________________Signature__________________________________________________________________________________

Insurance Co.

 DEPARTMENT OF RESOURCE MANAGEMENT
BUILDING & SAFETY SERVICES

675 TEXAS ST., SUITE 5500
FAIRFIELD, CA 94533

Office Number: (707) 784-6765
24 Hour Inspection Request Line: (707) 784-4750

Permit Issued By:Permit No: Trevor SlevinBUILDING PERMIT B2018-0868

WILLIAM DOTY CONSTRUCTION
P O BOX 522
CROCKETT, CA 94525
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Job Address: 46 SANDY BEACH ROAD Parcel No.: 0062020210 Valuation: $25,000.00

Description: REPLACE EXTERIOR SIDING

Owner: CLEMENCE SHANNON
46 SANDY BEACH RD
VALLEJO CA

Contractor:

Licensed Contractor Declaration

I hereby affirm that I am licensed under provisions of Chapter 9 (commencing with Section 7000) of Division of the Business and Professions Code, and my License is 
in full force and effect.           

Owner/Builder Declaration

I hereby affirm that I am exempt from the Contractor's License law for the reason:
[  ] I, as owner of the property, or my employee with wages as the sole compensation, will do the work, and the structure is not intended or offered for sale (Section 7044, 
Business and Professions Code).
[  ] I, as owner of the property, am exclusively contracting with licensed contractors to construct the project Section 7044, Business and
[  ] Owner-Builder intends to perform work and the structure is intended or offered for sale, the applicant must apply with the following conditions:
1. The structure is his or her principal place of residence.
2. He or she has resided in the residence for the past 12 months prior to the work.
3. He or she has not availed his or herself of this exemption on more than two structures more than once during any three-year period.
[  ] I am exempt under sec. ______________. B&PC for this reason___________________________________________________________________

Worker's Compensation Declaration

I hereby affirm that I have a certificate of Worker's Compensation Insurance, (Section 3800, Lab.C.)  

Certificate of Exemption From Workers' Compensation Insurance

I certify that in the performance of the work for which this permit is issued, I shall not employ any person in any manner so as to become subject to Worker's 
Compensation Laws of California.

Date_________________________   Signature___________________________________________________________________________________
Notice to Applicant: If, after making this Certificate of Exemption, you should become subject to Worker's Compensation provision of the Labor Code, you must 
forthwith comply with such provision or this permit shall be deemed revoked.

Division of Industrial Safety Permit Classification

[  ] As Owner/Builder, I will not perform or employ anyone to do work which would require a permit from the Division of Industrial Safety, unless such person has a 
permit to do such work from the division.
[  ] Division of Industrial Safety Permit Number_____________________________________

Air Quality Permit Certificate

[  ] I hereby affirm that I am not installing nor modifying any equipment which may cause air pollution.
[  ] My Air Quality Management District Authority to Construct permit number is___________________________________

Hazardous Materials and Waste Management

[  ] I have read the Hazardous Material Information Guide and understand my requirement under Chapter 6.95 of the California Health and Safety Code Section 25505, 
25533, and 25534. **I understand that if the building does not currently have a tenant, that it is my responsibility to notify the occupant of the requirements which must 
be met prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy. I certify that I have read this application and state that the information is correct. I agree to comply with all county 
ordinances and state laws relating to building construction, and hereby authorize representatives of the county to enter the above property for inspection purposes. 
[  ] I will submit a Construction and Demolition Waste Management Plan and/or Report, with receipts, documenting complance with State Law to divert a minimum of 
65% of non-hazardous waste from landfills through recycling or re-use.

Applicants Signature_______________________________________________________________________            Date________________________

Status: Expired Applied Date: 1/14/2021 Issued Date: 3/30/2022 Expires Date: 3/29/2024

Date_________________________Signature__________________________________________________________________________________

License# License Class Expiration Date

Date_________________________Signature__________________________________________________________________________________

Policy Number Expiration Date

Date_________________________Signature__________________________________________________________________________________

Insurance Co.

 DEPARTMENT OF RESOURCE MANAGEMENT
BUILDING & SAFETY SERVICES

675 TEXAS ST., SUITE 5500
FAIRFIELD, CA 94533

Office Number: (707) 784-6765
24 Hour Inspection Request Line: (707) 784-4750

Permit Issued By:Permit No: Avril RockwoodBUILDING PERMIT B2021-0044
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You don't often get email from bryan.t.matsumoto@usace.army.mil. Learn why this is important

From: Trujillo, Matthew@BCDC
To: Cohen, Rachel@BCDC
Subject: FW: 46 Sandy Beach Road (SPN-2023-00431)
Date: Thursday, December 14, 2023 4:21:12 PM
Attachments: SPN-2023-00431_Completed_Investigation_Questionnaire.doc.pdf

image001.png

Is this for you?
 
Best Regards,
 
MATTHEW TRUJILLO
Enforcement Policy Manager
(415) 352-3633
Matthew.Trujillo@bcdc.ca.gov
http://bcdc.ca.gov/enforcement
 
 
San Francisco Bay Conservation and Development Commission
375 Beale St., Suite 510
San Francisco, CA  94105
FAX: (415) 352-3606
Main Number: (415) 352-3600
Business Days & Hours:
M-F 8:30a – 5:00p
 
signature_726525059

 

From: Matsumoto, Bryan T CIV USARMY CESPN (USA) <Bryan.T.Matsumoto@usace.army.mil> 
Sent: Thursday, December 14, 2023 4:11 PM
To: redvine1960@gmail.com
Cc: Fairley, Erin@Waterboards <Erin.Fairley@Waterboards.ca.gov>; Dunn, Sabrina@Wildlife
<Sabrina.Dunn@Wildlife.ca.gov>; Trujillo, Matthew@BCDC <Matthew.Trujillo@bcdc.ca.gov>;
McWhorter, Scott <mcwhorter.scott@epa.gov>
Subject: 46 Sandy Beach Road (SPN-2023-00431)
 

Shannon,
 
                Thank you for taking the time to talk with me today and providing some answers to the
attached questionnaire.  Please confirm the following items are accurate based on our conversation:
 
-You did not install any new piles since you have owned the property.
-The catwalk on the south side that was recently constructed (please provide an approximate date of

Exhibit 6

mailto:bryan.t.matsumoto@usace.army.mil
https://aka.ms/LearnAboutSenderIdentification
mailto:/O=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=2CA7F03FF6E94FBFA89F20F09949BC1D-MATHEW TRUJ
mailto:rachel.cohen@bcdc.ca.gov
mailto:Matthew.Trujillo@bcdc.ca.gov
http://bcdc.ca.gov/enforcement
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/Immunization/ncov2019.aspx



INVESTIGATION QUESTIONNAIRE
U.S. Army Corps of Engineers


San Francisco District, Regulatory Division


File No. SPN-2023-00431


Date: November 2, 2023


Addressed To:
Shannon Clemence
46 Sandy Beach Road
Vallejo, CA 94590
redivinel 960qmaiLcom


1. Property Owner: C
Address: k77 3kC4k Phone: ()
(Bus.)


Address: L4 35*4-( O Phone: (4
(Res.)


E-mail Address: 6 I4T/V\ PcI


2. Person I contractor doing work:
____________________________________


Company:


Address:
(Bus.)


Phone: (
_


)


Address:
____________________________________


Phone: (
_


)
(Res.)


E-mail Address:







3. Consultant:


Company:


Address:
____________________________________


Phone: (
_


E-mail Address:


4. Location of Work:


Address: -)


City:
_____________________


ST:
___


ZIP: 590
County:


____%of _____%ofSec. _____,R
_____


N/S,T_____ E/W
(circle) (circle)


Lat: N Long: ow


UTM: Region
____


North:
________________


East:
_______________


Assessor ParceF Number: ZO .2.4


Describe location (relation to towns, roads, buildings, etc.):
_____________________


Name of Waterbody, if known:
____________________________________________







/ -


6. Permits obtained prior to commencement of work:


Department of the Army Permit #:


When?


CA Department of Fish & Game Permit #: JLJ7tilk
When?


CA Regional Water Quality Control Board Permit #: t-


When?


Local Permit #: rc


When?


7. Additional Information:


Please submit any other information and/or photographs which, in your opinion, may
be pertinent to the Corps of Engineers' evaluation of the activity and the
determination on whether the activity occurred in jurisdictional waters of the United
States.


ijf_ c%)


a v'J 1'tk


q%) 17 90 '0 U
V


(ilkyt j\ (P rJ( \ O


c3ç ôi 6











Was any grading performed associated with the activity?
______________________


Was any discing performed associated with the activity? Please explain the history
of discing performed on the site.


Were you ever informed by any other permit issuing agency that a Department of the
Army permit may be required?


Are you one of the persons responsible for the activity?
_________


Are you operating a business that is associated with the activity? 't'


Is the activity in question supervised by you or by others whom you employ?
_____


Will you allow Corps of Engineers' personnel access to the site to verify the nature of
the activity?







5. Details of the Activity:


Prior to this notification, were you aware of this activity taking place?
_____________


When did the activity begin?


Was the work discontinued?
___________________________________________


Was the work completed?
________


Is the work still in progress? J l


Please describe the work in detail, including the purpose of the work. ) '


'-.)o yZ t r rpL / o 't&(


OVL-


A- 9P4" -t3 c:i /2 c(j


ç2to
Was any fill material imported to the site? (Specify type(s) of material discharged
and the amount of each type in cubic yards.)


How was the material placed (discharged)?






ID-19 Updates






construction) was destroyed in a fire in 2018, and you initiated the process with the County to get a
permit to reconstruct it in 2020.
-The shed was constructed in an upland area that is not over the aquatic resource.
 
                Feel free to contact me with any questions that you might have.
 
Bryan Matsumoto
Senior Project Manager
USACE, Regulatory Division, North Branch
450 Golden Gate Avenue, 4th Floor, Room 1111
San Francisco, California 94102-3404
 
Office: 415-503-6786
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INVESTIGATION QUESTIONNAIRE
U.S. Army Corps of Engineers

San Francisco District, Regulatory Division

File No. SPN-2023-00431

Date: November 2, 2023

Addressed To:
Shannon Clemence
46 Sandy Beach Road
Vallejo, CA 94590
redivinel 960qmaiLcom

1. Property Owner: C
Address: k77 3kC4k Phone: ()
(Bus.)

Address: L4 35*4-( O Phone: (4
(Res.)

E-mail Address: 6 I4T/V\ PcI

2. Person I contractor doing work:
____________________________________

Company:

Address:
(Bus.)

Phone: (
_

)

Address:
____________________________________

Phone: (
_

)
(Res.)

E-mail Address:
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3. Consultant:

Company:

Address:
____________________________________

Phone: (
_

E-mail Address:

4. Location of Work:

Address: -)

City:
_____________________

ST:
___

ZIP: 590
County:

____%of _____%ofSec. _____,R
_____

N/S,T_____ E/W
(circle) (circle)

Lat: N Long: ow

UTM: Region
____

North:
________________

East:
_______________

Assessor ParceF Number: ZO .2.4

Describe location (relation to towns, roads, buildings, etc.):
_____________________

Name of Waterbody, if known:
____________________________________________
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/ -

6. Permits obtained prior to commencement of work:

Department of the Army Permit #:

When?

CA Department of Fish & Game Permit #: JLJ7tilk
When?

CA Regional Water Quality Control Board Permit #: t-

When?

Local Permit #: rc

When?

7. Additional Information:

Please submit any other information and/or photographs which, in your opinion, may
be pertinent to the Corps of Engineers' evaluation of the activity and the
determination on whether the activity occurred in jurisdictional waters of the United
States.

ijf_ c%)

a v'J 1'tk

q%) 17 90 '0 U
V

(ilkyt j\ (P rJ( \ O

c3ç ôi 6
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Was any grading performed associated with the activity?
______________________

Was any discing performed associated with the activity? Please explain the history
of discing performed on the site.

Were you ever informed by any other permit issuing agency that a Department of the
Army permit may be required?

Are you one of the persons responsible for the activity?
_________

Are you operating a business that is associated with the activity? 't'

Is the activity in question supervised by you or by others whom you employ?
_____

Will you allow Corps of Engineers' personnel access to the site to verify the nature of
the activity?
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5. Details of the Activity:

Prior to this notification, were you aware of this activity taking place?
_____________

When did the activity begin?

Was the work discontinued?
___________________________________________

Was the work completed?
________

Is the work still in progress? J l

Please describe the work in detail, including the purpose of the work. ) '

'-.)o yZ t r rpL / o 't&(

OVL-

A- 9P4" -t3 c:i /2 c(j

ç2to
Was any fill material imported to the site? (Specify type(s) of material discharged
and the amount of each type in cubic yards.)

How was the material placed (discharged)?
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From: Caldwell, Vicki@SLC
To: redvine1960@gmail.com
Cc: Trujillo, Matthew@BCDC; Cohen, Rachel@BCDC; Klein, Adrienne@BCDC; Malan, Margie@BCDC
Subject: FW: Notice of Violations (BCDC Enforcement Case ER2023.058.00)
Date: Tuesday, April 30, 2024 3:24:52 PM
Attachments: 2024.04.02_ER2023.058.00 Shannon Clemence 35DL.docx.pdf
Importance: High

Hi Shannon,
As you know, on August 23, 21019, the Commission authorized the assignment of Lease 9313 from the
Dopkin’s to you.
https://www.slc.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/2019/08/08-23-19_27.pdf .
You were assigned Lease 9313, which has a Section 2, paragraph 5 provision stating:
 
5. Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 3, General Provisions, Paragraph 5(g) Residential Use of
this Lease, Lessee(s) is hereby authorized to maintain the existing residential and related residential
structure(s), as shown on the attached Exhibit B, on the Lease Premises, subject to the following
conditions:
There shall be no expansion, vertically or otherwise, of the existing (portion of residence, deck, and
appurtenant facilities) authorized by this Lease and as described and shown on the attached Exhibit
B, or construction of new structures, within the Lease Premises, without the prior written approval of the
Lessor.
6. Built-in fixed improvements including, but not limited to, permanent roofs, wet bars, barbecues, grills,
hot tubs, refrigerators, or sinks are hereby prohibited from placement onto those portions of the deck
or pier within the Lease Premises.
 
The attached BCDC enforcement violation clearly shows that you are in breach of the lease you were
assigned. The addition of the deck must be removed from the Lease Premises as well as any other
improvement you may have constructed.
Please contact me regarding the Removal of the unauthorized facilities. Your lease DOES NOT allow
expansion of any improvements.
I look forward to hearing from you soon.
Thank you,
Vicki
 
Vicki Caldwell
Public Land Manager, Enforcement and Compliance Officer
CALIFORNIA STATE LANDS COMMISSION
100 Howe Avenue, Suite 100-South | Sacramento | CA 95825
916.574.1894 | Email: vicki.caldwell@slc.ca.gov
Work Hours: M-F, 6:00 a.m. – 3:00 p.m.
 
X (Twitter) | Instagram | YouTube
 
 
 
 
From: Malan, Margie@BCDC <margie.malan@bcdc.ca.gov> 
Sent: Tuesday, April 2, 2024 10:07 AM
To: Shannon Clemence <redvine1960@gmail.com>
Cc: Trujillo, Matthew@BCDC <Matthew.Trujillo@bcdc.ca.gov>; Fairley, Erin@Waterboards <Erin.Fairley@Waterboards.ca.gov>;
bryan.t.matsumoto@usace.army.mil; sabrina.funn@wildlife.ca.gov; Caldwell, Vicki@SLC <Vicki.Caldwell@slc.ca.gov>;
dmfeiling@solanocounty.com; Building <building@solanocounty.com>; alchemistsguild@gmail.com
Subject: Notice of Violations (BCDC Enforcement Case ER2023.058.00)
 
 

Attention:  This email originated from outside of SLC and should be treated with extra caution.
 

Dear Shannon E. Clemence:

Please see attached letter on behalf of Matthew Trujillo. If you have any questions, please contact Matthew at 415-352-3633 or at
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San Francisco Bay Conservation and Development Commission 
375 Beale Street, Suite 510, San Francisco, California 94105 tel 415 352 3600 fax 888 348 5190 


State of California | Gavin Newsom – Governor | info@bcdc.ca.gov | www.bcdc.ca.gov  


   


Via Electronic and Certified Mail  


April 2, 2024 


ATTN: Shannon E. Clemence 
46 Sandy Beach Road 
Vallejo, CA 94590  
E-mail: redvine1960@gmail.com 


SUBJECT: Notice of Violations (BCDC Enforcement Case ER2023.058.00) 


Dear Shannon E. Clemence: 


On September 19, 2023, BCDC staff received a report alleging unauthorized activities at 46 
Sandy Beach Road in Vallejo, Solano County (Solano County Assessor’s Parcel Number 0062-
020-210). Staff informed you of these alleged violations of McAteer-Petris Act Section 66632(a) 
in an initial contact letter mailed to you on November 20, 2023. On January 17, 2024, staff 
visited the site with you and your authorized representative Mr. Gregory Earl and confirmed 
that violations consisted of placement of concrete pilings underneath the home and placement 
of decking, deck railing, and deck bracing substructure in BCDC’s Bay jurisdiction, and 
placement of a shed structure in BCDC’s 100-foot shoreline band jurisdiction. In conversations 
with staff, you have committed to applying for and obtaining an after-the-fact permit to 
authorize these projects.  


You have thirty-five (35) calendar days from the date of this letter to resolve the outstanding 
violation described below before fines begin to accrue pursuant to California Code of 
Regulations, Title 14, § 11390(a)(4). A detailed description of how fines accrue is attached to 
this letter in Appendix 1.  


Description of Violations. The placement of unauthorized fill in the Bay including concrete 
pilings underneath the home, and decking (including deck railing and substructure).  The 
placement of unauthorized fill in the 100-foot shoreline band, consisting of a shed structure.  


This activity represents a violation of the following: 


McAteer-Petris Act Section 66632(a). Any person or governmental agency 
wishing to place fill, to extract materials, or to make any substantial change in 
use of any water, land or structure, within the area of the commission’s 
jurisdiction shall secure a permit from the commission and, if required by law or 
by ordinance, from any city or county within which any part of the work is to be 
performed. For purposes of this title, “fill” means earth or any other substance or 
material, including pilings or structures placed on pilings, and structures floating 


DocuSign Envelope ID: F8149AEE-828C-4B68-8700-38B1F14DF13A
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at some or all times and moored for extended periods, such as houseboats and 
floating docks. For the purposes of this section “materials” means items 
exceeding twenty dollars ($20) in value. 


To resolve your violations, you must apply for and obtain a BCDC permit. If you fail to obtain a 
permit within 125 days of the mailing date of this notice, you will be subject to a formal 
enforcement action that may include up to $30,000 in administrative civil penalties per 
violation (e.g., each individual instance of fill) found at the site and a Commission cease-and-
desist order that mandates the removal of the unauthorized fill at the site.  


I look forward to continuing to work with you to bring your property into compliance. Please 
don’t hesitate to reach out with any questions.  
 


Sincerely, 


 


 


 


 


MATTHEW TRUJILLO 
Enforcement Policy Manager 
San Francisco Bay Conservation and Development Commission 
375 Beale Street, Suite 510 
San Francisco, California 94105 
Tel: 415-352-3633 
Fax: 415-352-3606 
Email: matthew.trujillo@bcdc.ca.gov 
Website: www.bcdc.ca.gov  
 
MT/mm 
 
cc:  (via e-mail only):  
 SF Bay Regional Water Quality Control Board, Erin Fairley, erin.fairley@waterboards.ca.gov  
 US Army Corps of Engineers, Bryan Matsumoto, bryan.t.matsumoto@usace.army.mil  
 CA Dept. of Fish and Wildlife, Sabrina Dunn, sabrina.funn@wildlife.ca.gov   
 CA State Lands Commission, Vicki Caldwell, vicki.caldwell@slc.ca.gov  
 Solano County Building Department, Denise Feiling, dmfeiling@solanocounty.com  
 Solano County Building Department, building@solanocounty.com  
 Gregory Earl, alchemistsguild@gmail.com  
  


DocuSign Envelope ID: F8149AEE-828C-4B68-8700-38B1F14DF13A



http://www.bcdc.ca.gov/

mailto:erin.fairley@waterboards.ca.gov

mailto:bryan.t.matsumoto@usace.army.mil

mailto:sabrina.funn@wildlife.ca.gov

mailto:vicki.caldwell@slc.ca.gov

mailto:dmfeiling@solanocounty.com

mailto:building@solanocounty.com

mailto:alchemistsguild@gmail.com





Shannon E. Clemence  Page 3 
Enf .  Case ER2023.058.00 Apr i l  2,  2024 


 
Figure 1. Image taken underneath home of some new pilings and new wooden deck substructure.  


 
 
Figure 2. Image showing some new pilings and a portion of the new deck. 
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Figure 3. Image showing some new pilings underneath home and new wooden bracing for deck.  


 
 
Figure 4. Image showing new shed structure in the shoreline band.  
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Appendix 1. Explanation of Standardized Fines Pursuant to the BCDC’s Regulations 


(Effective October 1, 2022)  
 


Enforcement Options.  
Pursuant to Chapter 13, Subchapter 2, Article 3 of the BCDC’s administrative regulations, you 
may resolve each alleged violation without having to go through a Commission enforcement 
proceeding by taking each and every corrective action required by this letter and by paying the 
standardized fines specified in the BCDC’s regulations §11390(a) or (b) or (c), as described 
below. Pursuant to §11390(d), if you do not make a good-faith effort to correct the alleged 
violations; have not corrected all the alleged violations within 125 days of the mailing date of 
this letter (or by the date(s) specified below); or you do not pay the amount of standardized 
fines assessed by the date payment is due, you may no longer have the option to settle this 
matter with standardized fines and we may, pursuant to BCDC’s regulations §11321-11334, 
commence a formal enforcement proceeding that would include public hearings before the 
Commission, and could lead to the issuance of a cease and desist and civil penalty order with an 
administratively imposed civil penalty of between $10 and $2,000 per day, up to a maximum of 
$30,000 per alleged violation. 
 
Opportunity to Complete Corrective Action without Imposition of a Standardized Fine. 
Pursuant to §11388, except as provided in §11390(c), if the person responsible for the alleged 
violation submits information demonstrating that the alleged violation(s) have not occurred or 
that the responsible person has completed each and every corrective action required by this 
notice within 35 days after the date of mailing printed above, the Commission shall not impose 
any standardized fine. 
 
Opportunity to Complete Correction Action with Imposition of a Standardized Fine. 
Except as provided in § 11390 (c) and (d), if the person responsible for the alleged violations 
noted above fails to resolve each violation within 35 days of the date of this letter, that person 
may resolve their enforcement case by completing each and every corrective action required by 
this letter and by paying a fine in the amount provided in § 11390(a) and, where applicable, (b), 
as follows: 


§ 11390(a)(1). For the failure to submit an executed Commission permit before commencing 
the work authorized by the permit, or, for any permit issued to authorize previously 
commenced or completed work, for failure to return an acknowledged, executed permit 
within the time period stated in the permit: 


Standardized Fines.  
If the executed permit is received between 36 and 65 days after the date of the mailing of this 
letter, you may resolve the penalty portion of the alleged violation by paying a standardized 
fine of $2,000. If the executed permit is received more than 65 days after the date of the 
mailing of this letter, you may resolve the alleged violation by paying a standardized fine of 
$5,000, plus $500 per day, from the 65th day to the date the executed permit is received, up to 
a maximum fine of $30,000 per violation. 
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§ 11390(a)(2). For the failure to submit any document other than an executed Commission 
permit in the form, manner or time required by a Commission permit: 


Standardized Fines. 
For each document submitted between 36 and 65 days after the date of the mailing of this 
letter, you may resolve alleged violation by paying a standardized fine of $2,000 per document. 
For each document submitted between 66 and 95 days after the date of the mailing of this 
letter, you may resolve the alleged violation by paying a standardized fine of $5,000 per 
document. For each document submitted more than 95 days after the date of the mailing of 
this letter, you may resolve the alleged violation by paying a standardized fine of $5,000 per 
document, plus $500 per day, from the 96th day to the date the document is received, up to a 
maximum fine of $30,000 per document. 


§ 11390 (a)(3). For the failure to comply with any condition required by a Commission permit 
not covered by (a)(1) or (a)(2): 


Standardized Fines.  
If corrected between 36 and 65 days after the date of the mailing of this letter, you may resolve 
the alleged violation by paying a standardized fine of $2,000 for each violation of each separate 
permit requirement. If corrected between 66 and 95 days after the date of the mailing of this 
letter, you may resolve the alleged violation by paying a standardized fine of $5,000 for each 
violation of each separate permit requirement. If corrected more than 95 days after the date of 
the mailing of this letter, you may resolve the alleged violation by paying a standardized fine of 
$5,000 for each violation noted above, plus $500 per day per violation, from the 96th day to the 
date the required improvements are provided, up to a maximum fine of $30,000 per permit 
requirement. 
 
§ 11390 (a)(4). For the failure to obtain a Commission permit or an amendment to a 
previously issued Commission permit prior to undertaking any activity that can be authorized 
by an administrative permit or an amendment to a previously issued Commission permit: 


Standardized Fines. 
If either a complete and properly executed application accompanied by a check or money order 
for the application fee is submitted between 36 and 65 days and a permit or permit 
amendment is obtained within 155 days after the date of the mailing of this letter, or the 
unauthorized activity is completely corrected between 36 and 65 days after the mailing date of 
this letter, then you may resolve the alleged violation by paying a standardized fine of $2,000.  
 
If a complete, executed application and fee is submitted between 66 and 95 days and a permit 
or permit amendment is obtained within 185 days after the date of the mailing of this letter, or 
the unauthorized activity is completely corrected between 66 and 95 days after the mailing 
date of this letter, then you may resolve the alleged violation by paying a standardized fine of 
$5,000. 
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If a complete, executed application and fee is submitted, or the unauthorized activity is 
completely corrected, more than 95 days after the date of the mailing of this letter then you 
may resolve the violation by paying a standardized fine of $5,000 plus $500 per day from the 
96th day to the date that either the complete, executed application and fee are submitted or the 
unauthorized activity is completely corrected, up to a maximum fine of $30,000 per violation. 


 
§ 11390 (a)(5). For the failure to obtain a Commission permit prior to undertaking any activity 
that can be authorized by either a regionwide or abbreviated regionwide permit: 


Standardized Fines.  
If either a complete notice of intent to proceed (NOI) under a regionwide or abbreviated 
regionwide permit is submitted between 36 and 65 days and said NOI is approved within 155 
days after the date of the mailing of this letter, or the unauthorized activity is completely 
corrected between 36 and 65 days, you may resolve the alleged violation by paying a 
standardized fine of $2,000.  


If either a complete NOI under a regionwide or abbreviated regionwide permit is submitted 
between 66 and 95 days and said NOI is approved within 185 days after the date of the mailing 
of this letter, or the unauthorized activity is completely corrected between 66 and 95 days, you 
may resolve the alleged violation by paying a standardized fine of $4,000. 


If either a complete NOI under a regionwide or abbreviated regionwide permit is submitted, or 
the unauthorized activity is completely corrected, more than 95 days after the date of the 
mailing of this letter, you may resolve the alleged violation by paying a standardized fine of 
$4,000, plus $500 per day, from the 96th day to the date the NOI is submitted or the 
unauthorized activity is completely corrected, up to a maximum fine of $30,000 per violation. 


§ 11390 (a)(6). For the placement of fill, the extraction of materials or a change in use that 
could not be authorized under the Commission’s laws and policies: 
 
Standardized Fines.  
If the violation is corrected and the area returned to its prior status between 36 and 65 days 
after the mailing of this letter, you may resolve the alleged violation by paying a standardized 
fine of $3,000.  


If the violation is corrected and the area returned to its prior status between 66 and 95 days 
after the mailing of this letter, you may resolve the alleged violation by paying a standardized 
fine of $8,000.  


If the violation is corrected and the area returned to its prior status more than 95 days after the 
mailing of this letter, you may resolve the alleged violation by paying a standardized fine of 
$8,000, plus $500 per day, to the date the violation is completely corrected, up to a maximum 
fine of $30,000 per violation. 
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§ 11390(b). A person believed to be responsible for any alleged violation must pay double the 
amount listed in subsection (a) to resolve the alleged violation if that person has previously 
paid, or has been assessed but has failed to pay, any standardized fine pursuant to § 11390(a) 
and § 11391 within the five years prior to resolution of the alleged violation. 


§ 11390(c). If a violation resolved pursuant to § 11388 is repeated by the same person within 
five years of the resolution of the prior violation, § 11390(a) and (b) shall not apply. Instead, the 
person believed to be responsible for the subsequent alleged violation may resolve the 
subsequent alleged violation by paying $200 per day for each day the alleged violation occurs or 
persists after the mailing date of this letter. 
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matthew.trujillo@bcdc.ca.gov.
 
Please note this same letter will also be sent to you via Certified Mail today.
 
 
 
Sincerely,
 
Margie F. Malan, Legal Secretary
San Francisco Bay Conservation and Development Commission (BCDC)
Bay Area Metro Center
375 Beale St, Suite 510, San Francisco, CA 94105
Direct: (415) 352-3675
Main:   (415) 352-3600
Email: margie.malan@bcdc.ca.gov
Website: www.bcdc.ca.gov
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San Francisco Bay Conservation and Development Commission 
375 Beale Street, Suite 510, San Francisco, California 94105 tel 415 352 3600 fax 888 348 5190 

State of California | Gavin Newsom – Governor | info@bcdc.ca.gov | www.bcdc.ca.gov  

   

Via Electronic and Certified Mail  

April 2, 2024 

ATTN: Shannon E. Clemence 
46 Sandy Beach Road 
Vallejo, CA 94590  
E-mail: redvine1960@gmail.com 

SUBJECT: Notice of Violations (BCDC Enforcement Case ER2023.058.00) 

Dear Shannon E. Clemence: 

On September 19, 2023, BCDC staff received a report alleging unauthorized activities at 46 
Sandy Beach Road in Vallejo, Solano County (Solano County Assessor’s Parcel Number 0062-
020-210). Staff informed you of these alleged violations of McAteer-Petris Act Section 66632(a) 
in an initial contact letter mailed to you on November 20, 2023. On January 17, 2024, staff 
visited the site with you and your authorized representative Mr. Gregory Earl and confirmed 
that violations consisted of placement of concrete pilings underneath the home and placement 
of decking, deck railing, and deck bracing substructure in BCDC’s Bay jurisdiction, and 
placement of a shed structure in BCDC’s 100-foot shoreline band jurisdiction. In conversations 
with staff, you have committed to applying for and obtaining an after-the-fact permit to 
authorize these projects.  

You have thirty-five (35) calendar days from the date of this letter to resolve the outstanding 
violation described below before fines begin to accrue pursuant to California Code of 
Regulations, Title 14, § 11390(a)(4). A detailed description of how fines accrue is attached to 
this letter in Appendix 1.  

Description of Violations. The placement of unauthorized fill in the Bay including concrete 
pilings underneath the home, and decking (including deck railing and substructure).  The 
placement of unauthorized fill in the 100-foot shoreline band, consisting of a shed structure.  

This activity represents a violation of the following: 

McAteer-Petris Act Section 66632(a). Any person or governmental agency 
wishing to place fill, to extract materials, or to make any substantial change in 
use of any water, land or structure, within the area of the commission’s 
jurisdiction shall secure a permit from the commission and, if required by law or 
by ordinance, from any city or county within which any part of the work is to be 
performed. For purposes of this title, “fill” means earth or any other substance or 
material, including pilings or structures placed on pilings, and structures floating 
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at some or all times and moored for extended periods, such as houseboats and 
floating docks. For the purposes of this section “materials” means items 
exceeding twenty dollars ($20) in value. 

To resolve your violations, you must apply for and obtain a BCDC permit. If you fail to obtain a 
permit within 125 days of the mailing date of this notice, you will be subject to a formal 
enforcement action that may include up to $30,000 in administrative civil penalties per 
violation (e.g., each individual instance of fill) found at the site and a Commission cease-and-
desist order that mandates the removal of the unauthorized fill at the site.  

I look forward to continuing to work with you to bring your property into compliance. Please 
don’t hesitate to reach out with any questions.  
 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

 

MATTHEW TRUJILLO 
Enforcement Policy Manager 
San Francisco Bay Conservation and Development Commission 
375 Beale Street, Suite 510 
San Francisco, California 94105 
Tel: 415-352-3633 
Fax: 415-352-3606 
Email: matthew.trujillo@bcdc.ca.gov 
Website: www.bcdc.ca.gov  
 
MT/mm 
 
cc:  (via e-mail only):  
 SF Bay Regional Water Quality Control Board, Erin Fairley, erin.fairley@waterboards.ca.gov  
 US Army Corps of Engineers, Bryan Matsumoto, bryan.t.matsumoto@usace.army.mil  
 CA Dept. of Fish and Wildlife, Sabrina Dunn, sabrina.funn@wildlife.ca.gov   
 CA State Lands Commission, Vicki Caldwell, vicki.caldwell@slc.ca.gov  
 Solano County Building Department, Denise Feiling, dmfeiling@solanocounty.com  
 Solano County Building Department, building@solanocounty.com  
 Gregory Earl, alchemistsguild@gmail.com  
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Figure 1. Image taken underneath home of some new pilings and new wooden deck substructure.  

 
 
Figure 2. Image showing some new pilings and a portion of the new deck. 
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Figure 3. Image showing some new pilings underneath home and new wooden bracing for deck.  

 
 
Figure 4. Image showing new shed structure in the shoreline band.  
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Appendix 1. Explanation of Standardized Fines Pursuant to the BCDC’s Regulations 

(Effective October 1, 2022)  
 

Enforcement Options.  
Pursuant to Chapter 13, Subchapter 2, Article 3 of the BCDC’s administrative regulations, you 
may resolve each alleged violation without having to go through a Commission enforcement 
proceeding by taking each and every corrective action required by this letter and by paying the 
standardized fines specified in the BCDC’s regulations §11390(a) or (b) or (c), as described 
below. Pursuant to §11390(d), if you do not make a good-faith effort to correct the alleged 
violations; have not corrected all the alleged violations within 125 days of the mailing date of 
this letter (or by the date(s) specified below); or you do not pay the amount of standardized 
fines assessed by the date payment is due, you may no longer have the option to settle this 
matter with standardized fines and we may, pursuant to BCDC’s regulations §11321-11334, 
commence a formal enforcement proceeding that would include public hearings before the 
Commission, and could lead to the issuance of a cease and desist and civil penalty order with an 
administratively imposed civil penalty of between $10 and $2,000 per day, up to a maximum of 
$30,000 per alleged violation. 
 
Opportunity to Complete Corrective Action without Imposition of a Standardized Fine. 
Pursuant to §11388, except as provided in §11390(c), if the person responsible for the alleged 
violation submits information demonstrating that the alleged violation(s) have not occurred or 
that the responsible person has completed each and every corrective action required by this 
notice within 35 days after the date of mailing printed above, the Commission shall not impose 
any standardized fine. 
 
Opportunity to Complete Correction Action with Imposition of a Standardized Fine. 
Except as provided in § 11390 (c) and (d), if the person responsible for the alleged violations 
noted above fails to resolve each violation within 35 days of the date of this letter, that person 
may resolve their enforcement case by completing each and every corrective action required by 
this letter and by paying a fine in the amount provided in § 11390(a) and, where applicable, (b), 
as follows: 

§ 11390(a)(1). For the failure to submit an executed Commission permit before commencing 
the work authorized by the permit, or, for any permit issued to authorize previously 
commenced or completed work, for failure to return an acknowledged, executed permit 
within the time period stated in the permit: 

Standardized Fines.  
If the executed permit is received between 36 and 65 days after the date of the mailing of this 
letter, you may resolve the penalty portion of the alleged violation by paying a standardized 
fine of $2,000. If the executed permit is received more than 65 days after the date of the 
mailing of this letter, you may resolve the alleged violation by paying a standardized fine of 
$5,000, plus $500 per day, from the 65th day to the date the executed permit is received, up to 
a maximum fine of $30,000 per violation. 
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§ 11390(a)(2). For the failure to submit any document other than an executed Commission 
permit in the form, manner or time required by a Commission permit: 

Standardized Fines. 
For each document submitted between 36 and 65 days after the date of the mailing of this 
letter, you may resolve alleged violation by paying a standardized fine of $2,000 per document. 
For each document submitted between 66 and 95 days after the date of the mailing of this 
letter, you may resolve the alleged violation by paying a standardized fine of $5,000 per 
document. For each document submitted more than 95 days after the date of the mailing of 
this letter, you may resolve the alleged violation by paying a standardized fine of $5,000 per 
document, plus $500 per day, from the 96th day to the date the document is received, up to a 
maximum fine of $30,000 per document. 

§ 11390 (a)(3). For the failure to comply with any condition required by a Commission permit 
not covered by (a)(1) or (a)(2): 

Standardized Fines.  
If corrected between 36 and 65 days after the date of the mailing of this letter, you may resolve 
the alleged violation by paying a standardized fine of $2,000 for each violation of each separate 
permit requirement. If corrected between 66 and 95 days after the date of the mailing of this 
letter, you may resolve the alleged violation by paying a standardized fine of $5,000 for each 
violation of each separate permit requirement. If corrected more than 95 days after the date of 
the mailing of this letter, you may resolve the alleged violation by paying a standardized fine of 
$5,000 for each violation noted above, plus $500 per day per violation, from the 96th day to the 
date the required improvements are provided, up to a maximum fine of $30,000 per permit 
requirement. 
 
§ 11390 (a)(4). For the failure to obtain a Commission permit or an amendment to a 
previously issued Commission permit prior to undertaking any activity that can be authorized 
by an administrative permit or an amendment to a previously issued Commission permit: 

Standardized Fines. 
If either a complete and properly executed application accompanied by a check or money order 
for the application fee is submitted between 36 and 65 days and a permit or permit 
amendment is obtained within 155 days after the date of the mailing of this letter, or the 
unauthorized activity is completely corrected between 36 and 65 days after the mailing date of 
this letter, then you may resolve the alleged violation by paying a standardized fine of $2,000.  
 
If a complete, executed application and fee is submitted between 66 and 95 days and a permit 
or permit amendment is obtained within 185 days after the date of the mailing of this letter, or 
the unauthorized activity is completely corrected between 66 and 95 days after the mailing 
date of this letter, then you may resolve the alleged violation by paying a standardized fine of 
$5,000. 
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If a complete, executed application and fee is submitted, or the unauthorized activity is 
completely corrected, more than 95 days after the date of the mailing of this letter then you 
may resolve the violation by paying a standardized fine of $5,000 plus $500 per day from the 
96th day to the date that either the complete, executed application and fee are submitted or the 
unauthorized activity is completely corrected, up to a maximum fine of $30,000 per violation. 

 
§ 11390 (a)(5). For the failure to obtain a Commission permit prior to undertaking any activity 
that can be authorized by either a regionwide or abbreviated regionwide permit: 

Standardized Fines.  
If either a complete notice of intent to proceed (NOI) under a regionwide or abbreviated 
regionwide permit is submitted between 36 and 65 days and said NOI is approved within 155 
days after the date of the mailing of this letter, or the unauthorized activity is completely 
corrected between 36 and 65 days, you may resolve the alleged violation by paying a 
standardized fine of $2,000.  

If either a complete NOI under a regionwide or abbreviated regionwide permit is submitted 
between 66 and 95 days and said NOI is approved within 185 days after the date of the mailing 
of this letter, or the unauthorized activity is completely corrected between 66 and 95 days, you 
may resolve the alleged violation by paying a standardized fine of $4,000. 

If either a complete NOI under a regionwide or abbreviated regionwide permit is submitted, or 
the unauthorized activity is completely corrected, more than 95 days after the date of the 
mailing of this letter, you may resolve the alleged violation by paying a standardized fine of 
$4,000, plus $500 per day, from the 96th day to the date the NOI is submitted or the 
unauthorized activity is completely corrected, up to a maximum fine of $30,000 per violation. 

§ 11390 (a)(6). For the placement of fill, the extraction of materials or a change in use that 
could not be authorized under the Commission’s laws and policies: 
 
Standardized Fines.  
If the violation is corrected and the area returned to its prior status between 36 and 65 days 
after the mailing of this letter, you may resolve the alleged violation by paying a standardized 
fine of $3,000.  

If the violation is corrected and the area returned to its prior status between 66 and 95 days 
after the mailing of this letter, you may resolve the alleged violation by paying a standardized 
fine of $8,000.  

If the violation is corrected and the area returned to its prior status more than 95 days after the 
mailing of this letter, you may resolve the alleged violation by paying a standardized fine of 
$8,000, plus $500 per day, to the date the violation is completely corrected, up to a maximum 
fine of $30,000 per violation. 
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§ 11390(b). A person believed to be responsible for any alleged violation must pay double the 
amount listed in subsection (a) to resolve the alleged violation if that person has previously 
paid, or has been assessed but has failed to pay, any standardized fine pursuant to § 11390(a) 
and § 11391 within the five years prior to resolution of the alleged violation. 

§ 11390(c). If a violation resolved pursuant to § 11388 is repeated by the same person within 
five years of the resolution of the prior violation, § 11390(a) and (b) shall not apply. Instead, the 
person believed to be responsible for the subsequent alleged violation may resolve the 
subsequent alleged violation by paying $200 per day for each day the alleged violation occurs or 
persists after the mailing date of this letter. 
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Outlook

Re: Regarding 46 Sandy Beach Rd, Vallejo

From Usher, Anne@BCDC <anne.usher@bcdc.ca.gov>
Date Wed 2/12/2025 10:22 AM
To Caldwell, Vicki@SLC <Vicki.Caldwell@slc.ca.gov>

Good morning, Vicki! Thanks so much for letting me know - and so quickly 🙂 I really appreciate it.

Best,
Anne

From: Caldwell, Vicki@SLC <Vicki.Caldwell@slc.ca.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, February 12, 2025 5:25 AM
To: Usher, Anne@BCDC <anne.usher@bcdc.ca.gov>
Subject: RE: Regarding 46 Sandy Beach Rd, Vallejo
 
WARNING: This message is from an external source. Verify the sender and exercise caution when clicking links or opening attachments.

Good morning, Anne,
I hope this email finds you well!
The Lease Amendment to Lease 9313 for Shannon Clemence for the 62.63 sq. ft. deck addition is scheduled
for Commission consideration at our April 2, 2025, meeting.
Here is the area of deck addition for ADA compliance.

 
Please let me know if you have any additional questions.
Thank you,
Vicki
 
Vicki Caldwell, (she, her) Compliance/Enforcement Officer
Land Management Division
CALIFORNIA STATE LANDS COMMISSION
100 Howe Avenue, Suite 100-South
Sacramento CA 95825
916.574.1894
Vicki.Caldwell@slc.ca.gov
Work Hours: Monday – Friday, 6 a.m.- 3 p.m.
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From: Usher, Anne@BCDC <anne.usher@bcdc.ca.gov>
Sent: Tuesday, February 11, 2025 3:31 PM
To: Caldwell, Vicki@SLC <Vicki.Caldwell@slc.ca.gov>
Subject: Regarding 46 Sandy Beach Rd, Vallejo
 
 
Attention:  This email originated from outside of SLC and should be treated with extra caution.
 
Hi Vicki,
 
I hope you're doing well. I wanted to see if you could please tell me where things stand with your
consideration of an amendment to SLC's lease for 46 Sandy Beach Road in Vallejo (Shannon Clemence is
the property owner).
 
I understand from speaking with Shannon's partner, Greg, that were in touch with her this summer and did a
site visit after initially informing her that her construction on the house needed to be taken down because it
was done without first obtaining the amendment. (And noting our enforcement case). I see that she was also
in touch with someone else on SLC's staff.
 
Please let me know when you get a chance. Thanks!
 
Best,
Anne
 
 
Anne Usher
Enforcement Policy Analyst
(415) 352-3662
Anne.Usher@bcdc.ca.gov
 

      
San Francisco Bay Conservation and Development Commission
http://bcdc.ca.gov/enforcement
375 Beale St., Suite 510
San Francisco, CA  94105
FAX: (415) 352-3606
Main Number: (415) 352-3600
Business Days & Hours: M-F 8:30a – 5:00p
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STAFF REPORT 

27 
A 14 08/23/19 
 PRC 9313.1 
S 3 D. Tutov 
 

ASSIGNMENT OF LEASE  
 
LESSEE/ASSIGNOR: 

Donald G. Dopkins and Janet N. Dopkins, Co-Trustees of the Dopkins Family 
Trust Dated February 21, 1997   

 
APPLICANT/ASSIGNEE: 

Shannon Clemence 
 

AREA, LAND TYPE, AND LOCATION: 
Sovereign land in Mare Island Strait, adjacent to 46 Sandy Beach Road, near 
Vallejo, Solano County. 
 

AUTHORIZED USE: 
Continued use and maintenance of a portion of an existing residence, deck, and 
appurtenant facilities. 

 
LEASE TERM: 

30 years, beginning February 9, 2016. 
 
CONSIDERATION: 

$278 per year; with the State reserving the right to fix a different rent periodically 
during the lease term, as provided in the lease. 

 
SPECIFIC LEASE PROVISIONS: 

Liability insurance in an amount no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence. 
 
STAFF ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION: 

Authority: 
Public Resources Code sections 6005, 6216, 6301, 6501.1, 6503, and 
6505.5; California Code of Regulations, title 2, sections 2000 and 2003. 

 
 Public Trust and the State’s Best Interests Analysis: 

On February 9, 2016, the Commission authorized a General Lease – 
Recreational and Residential Use to Donald G. Dopkins and Janet N. 
Dopkins, Co-Trustees of the Dopkins Family Trust Dated February 21, 
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1997 (Item C31, February 9, 2016). That lease will expire on February 8, 
2046.  
 
On April 30, 2019, interest in the upland parcel was deeded to Shannon 
Clemence. The Applicant is now requesting an assignment of the lease 
and agrees to perform and be bound by the terms, conditions, covenants, 
and agreements contained in the lease. Staff recommends an assignment 
of the lease to reflect the change in ownership of the upland parcel from 
the Assignor to the Assignee. The assignment will be effective as of the 
date of transfer, April 30, 2019. The lease assignment will not result in a 
change in the use of, or impacts to, Public Trust resources. 
 

 Climate Change: 
Climate change impacts, including sea-level rise, more frequent and 
intense storm events, and increased flooding and erosion, affect both 
open coastal areas and inland waterways in California. The lease area is 
located in Mare Island Strait, which is a tidally influenced site vulnerable to 
flooding at current sea levels and will be at higher risk of flood exposure 
given projected scenarios of sea-level rise. The subject facilities are also 
classified within FEMA’s Coastal High Hazard Area as an area currently 
subject to inundation by the 1 percent annual chance flood event, with 
additional hazards due to storm-induced velocity wave action.  
 
The California Ocean Protection Council updated the State of California 
Sea-Level Rise Guidance in 2018 to provide a synthesis of the best 
available science on sea-level rise projections and rates. Commission staff 
evaluated the “high emissions,” “medium-high risk aversion” scenario to 
apply a conservative approach based on both current emission trajectories 
and the lease location and structures. The San Francisco tide gauge was 
used for the projected sea-level rise scenario for the region as listed in 
Table 1. 
 

Table 1. Projected Sea-Level Rise for San Francisco1 

Year Projection (feet) 

2030 0.8 

2040 1.3 

2050 1.9 

2100 6.9 
Source: Table 13, State of California Sea-Level Rise 
Guidance: 2018 Update 

                Note: 1 Projections are with respect to a 1991 to 2009 baseline. 
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Rising sea levels can lead to more frequent flood inundation in low-lying 
areas and larger tidal events and could increase inundation levels within 
the lease area over the term of the lease. In addition, as stated in 
Safeguarding California Plan: 2018 Update (California Natural Resources 
Agency 2018), climate change is projected to increase the frequency and 
severity of natural disasters related to flooding, fire, drought, extreme heat, 
and storms (especially when coupled with sea-level rise). In rivers and 
tidally influenced waterways, more frequent and powerful storms can 
result in increased flooding conditions and damage from storm-created 
debris. Climate change and sea-level rise will further influence coastal and 
riverine areas by changing erosion and sedimentation rates. Near-coastal 
riverine areas will be exposed to increased wave force and run-up, 
potentially resulting in greater bank erosion than previously experienced. 
Finally, in rivers and tidally influenced waterways, flooding and storm flow 
will likely increase scour, decreasing bank stability and structure.  
 
Regular maintenance and implementation of best management practices, 
as required by the terms of the lease, will help reduce the likelihood of 
severe structural degradation, dislodgement, or hazards from the electrical 
conduits. Further climate change impact analyses on the leased facilities 
will be assessed at the time the lease expires in 2046, if an application is 
submitted for a new lease, and would be based on projected sea-level rise 
scenarios at that time. 
 

Conclusion: 
For all the reasons above, staff believes the assignment of this lease will 
not substantially interfere with the Public Trust needs at this location, at 
this time, and for the foreseeable term of the lease; and is in the best 
interests of the State. 
 

OTHER PERTINENT INFORMATION: 
1. Approval or denial of the assignment is a discretionary action by the 

Commission. Each time the Commission approves or rejects a use of 
sovereign land, it exercises legislatively delegated authority and 
responsibility as trustee of the State’s Public Trust lands as authorized by 
law.  

 
2. This activity is consistent with Strategy 1.1 of the Commission’s Strategic 

Plan to deliver the highest levels of public health and safety in the 
protection, preservation, and responsible economic use of the lands and 
resources under the Commission’s jurisdiction. 
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2. Assignment of the lease is not a project as defined by the California 
Environmental Quality Act because it is an administrative action that will 
not result in direct or indirect physical changes in the environment. 

 
 Authority: Public Resources Code section 21065 and California Code of 

Regulations, title 14, section 15378, subdivision (b)(5). 
 

EXHIBITS: 
 A. Land Description 

B. Site and Location Map 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
It is recommended that the Commission: 
 

PUBLIC TRUST AND STATE’S BEST INTERESTS: 
1. Find that the existing and, for a limited period, continuing use and 

maintenance of a portion of the residence, deck, and appurtenant 
facilities are not generally consistent with the Public Trust doctrine, 
but the current use does not substantially interfere with the trust; 
and, 

 
2. Find that the assignment of the proposed lease is in the best 

interests of the State. 
 
 AUTHORIZATION: 

Authorize the assignment of Lease No. PRC 9313.1, a General Lease – 
Recreational and Residential Use, of sovereign land as described in 
Exhibit A, Land Description, and shown on Exhibit B, Site and Location 
Map (for reference purposes only), attached and by this reference made a 
part hereof; from Donald G. Dopkins and Janet N. Dopkins, Co-Trustees 
of the Dopkins Family Trust Dated February 21, 1997, to Shannon 
Clemence, effective April 30, 2019. 
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San Francisco Bay Conservation and Development Commission 
375 Beale Street, Suite 510, San Francisco, California 94105 tel 415 352 3600 fax 888 348 5190 

State of California | Gavin Newsom – Governor | info@bcdc.ca.gov | www.bcdc.ca.gov 

Via Electronic and Certified Mail 

April 2, 2024 

ATTN: Shannon E. Clemence 
46 Sandy Beach Road 
Vallejo, CA 94590 
E-mail: redvine1960@gmail.com

SUBJECT: Notice of Violations (BCDC Enforcement Case ER2023.058.00) 

Dear Shannon E. Clemence: 

On September 19, 2023, BCDC staff received a report alleging unauthorized activities at 46 
Sandy Beach Road in Vallejo, Solano County (Solano County Assessor’s Parcel Number 0062- 
020-210). Staff informed you of these alleged violations of McAteer-Petris Act Section 66632(a)
in an initial contact letter mailed to you on November 20, 2023. On January 17, 2024, staff
visited the site with you and your authorized representative Mr. Gregory Earl and confirmed
that violations consisted of placement of concrete pilings underneath the home and placement
of decking, deck railing, and deck bracing substructure in BCDC’s Bay jurisdiction, and
placement of a shed structure in BCDC’s 100-foot shoreline band jurisdiction. In conversations
with staff, you have committed to applying for and obtaining an after-the-fact permit to
authorize these projects.

You have thirty-five (35) calendar days from the date of this letter to resolve the outstanding 
violation described below before fines begin to accrue pursuant to California Code of 
Regulations, Title 14, § 11390(a)(4). A detailed description of how fines accrue is attached to 
this letter in Appendix 1. 

Description of Violations. The placement of unauthorized fill in the Bay including concrete 
pilings underneath the home, and decking (including deck railing and substructure). The 
placement of unauthorized fill in the 100-foot shoreline band, consisting of a shed structure. 

This activity represents a violation of the following: 

McAteer-Petris Act Section 66632(a). Any person or governmental agency 
wishing to place fill, to extract materials, or to make any substantial change in 
use of any water, land or structure, within the area of the commission’s 
jurisdiction shall secure a permit from the commission and, if required by law or 
by ordinance, from any city or county within which any part of the work is to be 
performed. For purposes of this title, “fill” means earth or any other substance or 
material, including pilings or structures placed on pilings, and structures floating 
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at some or all times and moored for extended periods, such as houseboats and 
floating docks. For the purposes of this section “materials” means items 
exceeding twenty dollars ($20) in value. 

To resolve your violations, you must apply for and obtain a BCDC permit. If you fail to obtain a 
permit within 125 days of the mailing date of this notice, you will be subject to a formal 
enforcement action that may include up to $30,000 in administrative civil penalties per 
violation (e.g., each individual instance of fill) found at the site and a Commission cease-and- 
desist order that mandates the removal of the unauthorized fill at the site. 

I look forward to continuing to work with you to bring your property into compliance. Please 
don’t hesitate to reach out with any questions. 

Sincerely, 

MATTHEW TRUJILLO 
Enforcement Policy Manager 
San Francisco Bay Conservation and Development Commission 
375 Beale Street, Suite 510 
San Francisco, California 94105 
Tel: 415-352-3633 
Fax: 415-352-3606 
Email: matthew.trujillo@bcdc.ca.gov 
Website: www.bcdc.ca.gov 

MT/mm 

cc: (via e-mail only): 
SF Bay Regional Water Quality Control Board, Erin Fairley, erin.fairley@waterboards.ca.gov 
US Army Corps of Engineers, Bryan Matsumoto, bryan.t.matsumoto@usace.army.mil 
CA Dept. of Fish and Wildlife, Sabrina Dunn, sabrina.funn@wildlife.ca.gov 
CA State Lands Commission, Vicki Caldwell, vicki.caldwell@slc.ca.gov 
Solano County Building Department, Denise Feiling, dmfeiling@solanocounty.com 
Solano County Building Department, building@solanocounty.com 
Gregory Earl, alchemistsguild@gmail.com 
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Figure 1. Image taken underneath home of some new pilings and new wooden deck substructure. 

Figure 2. Image showing some new pilings and a portion of the new deck. 
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Figure 3. Image showing some new pilings underneath home and new wooden bracing for deck. 

Figure 4. Image showing new shed structure in the shoreline band. 
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Appendix 1. Explanation of Standardized Fines Pursuant to the BCDC’s Regulations 
(Effective October 1, 2022) 

Enforcement Options. 
Pursuant to Chapter 13, Subchapter 2, Article 3 of the BCDC’s administrative regulations, you 
may resolve each alleged violation without having to go through a Commission enforcement 
proceeding by taking each and every corrective action required by this letter and by paying the 
standardized fines specified in the BCDC’s regulations §11390(a) or (b) or (c), as described 
below. Pursuant to §11390(d), if you do not make a good-faith effort to correct the alleged 
violations; have not corrected all the alleged violations within 125 days of the mailing date of 
this letter (or by the date(s) specified below); or you do not pay the amount of standardized 
fines assessed by the date payment is due, you may no longer have the option to settle this 
matter with standardized fines and we may, pursuant to BCDC’s regulations §11321-11334, 
commence a formal enforcement proceeding that would include public hearings before the 
Commission, and could lead to the issuance of a cease and desist and civil penalty order with an 
administratively imposed civil penalty of between $10 and $2,000 per day, up to a maximum of 
$30,000 per alleged violation. 

Opportunity to Complete Corrective Action without Imposition of a Standardized Fine. 
Pursuant to §11388, except as provided in §11390(c), if the person responsible for the alleged 
violation submits information demonstrating that the alleged violation(s) have not occurred or 
that the responsible person has completed each and every corrective action required by this 
notice within 35 days after the date of mailing printed above, the Commission shall not impose 
any standardized fine. 

Opportunity to Complete Correction Action with Imposition of a Standardized Fine. 
Except as provided in § 11390 (c) and (d), if the person responsible for the alleged violations 
noted above fails to resolve each violation within 35 days of the date of this letter, that person 
may resolve their enforcement case by completing each and every corrective action required by 
this letter and by paying a fine in the amount provided in § 11390(a) and, where applicable, (b), 
as follows: 

§ 11390(a)(1). For the failure to submit an executed Commission permit before commencing 
the work authorized by the permit, or, for any permit issued to authorize previously 
commenced or completed work, for failure to return an acknowledged, executed permit 
within the time period stated in the permit: 

Standardized Fines. 
If the executed permit is received between 36 and 65 days after the date of the mailing of this 
letter, you may resolve the penalty portion of the alleged violation by paying a standardized 
fine of $2,000. If the executed permit is received more than 65 days after the date of the 
mailing of this letter, you may resolve the alleged violation by paying a standardized fine of 
$5,000, plus $500 per day, from the 65th day to the date the executed permit is received, up to 
a maximum fine of $30,000 per violation. 
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§ 11390(a)(2). For the failure to submit any document other than an executed Commission 
permit in the form, manner or time required by a Commission permit: 

Standardized Fines. 
For each document submitted between 36 and 65 days after the date of the mailing of this 
letter, you may resolve alleged violation by paying a standardized fine of $2,000 per document. 
For each document submitted between 66 and 95 days after the date of the mailing of this 
letter, you may resolve the alleged violation by paying a standardized fine of $5,000 per 
document. For each document submitted more than 95 days after the date of the mailing of 
this letter, you may resolve the alleged violation by paying a standardized fine of $5,000 per 
document, plus $500 per day, from the 96th day to the date the document is received, up to a 
maximum fine of $30,000 per document. 

§ 11390 (a)(3). For the failure to comply with any condition required by a Commission permit 
not covered by (a)(1) or (a)(2): 

Standardized Fines. 
If corrected between 36 and 65 days after the date of the mailing of this letter, you may resolve 
the alleged violation by paying a standardized fine of $2,000 for each violation of each separate 
permit requirement. If corrected between 66 and 95 days after the date of the mailing of this 
letter, you may resolve the alleged violation by paying a standardized fine of $5,000 for each 
violation of each separate permit requirement. If corrected more than 95 days after the date of 
the mailing of this letter, you may resolve the alleged violation by paying a standardized fine of 
$5,000 for each violation noted above, plus $500 per day per violation, from the 96th day to the 
date the required improvements are provided, up to a maximum fine of $30,000 per permit 
requirement. 

§ 11390 (a)(4). For the failure to obtain a Commission permit or an amendment to a 
previously issued Commission permit prior to undertaking any activity that can be authorized 
by an administrative permit or an amendment to a previously issued Commission permit: 

Standardized Fines. 
If either a complete and properly executed application accompanied by a check or money order 
for the application fee is submitted between 36 and 65 days and a permit or permit 
amendment is obtained within 155 days after the date of the mailing of this letter, or the 
unauthorized activity is completely corrected between 36 and 65 days after the mailing date of 
this letter, then you may resolve the alleged violation by paying a standardized fine of $2,000. 

If a complete, executed application and fee is submitted between 66 and 95 days and a permit 
or permit amendment is obtained within 185 days after the date of the mailing of this letter, or 
the unauthorized activity is completely corrected between 66 and 95 days after the mailing 
date of this letter, then you may resolve the alleged violation by paying a standardized fine of 
$5,000. 
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If a complete, executed application and fee is submitted, or the unauthorized activity is 
completely corrected, more than 95 days after the date of the mailing of this letter then you 
may resolve the violation by paying a standardized fine of $5,000 plus $500 per day from the 
96th day to the date that either the complete, executed application and fee are submitted or the 
unauthorized activity is completely corrected, up to a maximum fine of $30,000 per violation. 

§ 11390 (a)(5). For the failure to obtain a Commission permit prior to undertaking any activity 
that can be authorized by either a regionwide or abbreviated regionwide permit: 

Standardized Fines. 
If either a complete notice of intent to proceed (NOI) under a regionwide or abbreviated 
regionwide permit is submitted between 36 and 65 days and said NOI is approved within 155 
days after the date of the mailing of this letter, or the unauthorized activity is completely 
corrected between 36 and 65 days, you may resolve the alleged violation by paying a 
standardized fine of $2,000. 

If either a complete NOI under a regionwide or abbreviated regionwide permit is submitted 
between 66 and 95 days and said NOI is approved within 185 days after the date of the mailing 
of this letter, or the unauthorized activity is completely corrected between 66 and 95 days, you 
may resolve the alleged violation by paying a standardized fine of $4,000. 

If either a complete NOI under a regionwide or abbreviated regionwide permit is submitted, or 
the unauthorized activity is completely corrected, more than 95 days after the date of the 
mailing of this letter, you may resolve the alleged violation by paying a standardized fine of 
$4,000, plus $500 per day, from the 96th day to the date the NOI is submitted or the 
unauthorized activity is completely corrected, up to a maximum fine of $30,000 per violation. 

§ 11390 (a)(6). For the placement of fill, the extraction of materials or a change in use that 
could not be authorized under the Commission’s laws and policies: 

Standardized Fines. 
If the violation is corrected and the area returned to its prior status between 36 and 65 days 
after the mailing of this letter, you may resolve the alleged violation by paying a standardized 
fine of $3,000. 

If the violation is corrected and the area returned to its prior status between 66 and 95 days 
after the mailing of this letter, you may resolve the alleged violation by paying a standardized 
fine of $8,000. 

If the violation is corrected and the area returned to its prior status more than 95 days after the 
mailing of this letter, you may resolve the alleged violation by paying a standardized fine of 
$8,000, plus $500 per day, to the date the violation is completely corrected, up to a maximum 
fine of $30,000 per violation. 
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§ 11390(b). A person believed to be responsible for any alleged violation must pay double the 
amount listed in subsection (a) to resolve the alleged violation if that person has previously 
paid, or has been assessed but has failed to pay, any standardized fine pursuant to § 11390(a) 
and § 11391 within the five years prior to resolution of the alleged violation. 

§ 11390(c). If a violation resolved pursuant to § 11388 is repeated by the same person within 
five years of the resolution of the prior violation, § 11390(a) and (b) shall not apply. Instead, the 
person believed to be responsible for the subsequent alleged violation may resolve the 
subsequent alleged violation by paying $200 per day for each day the alleged violation occurs or 
persists after the mailing date of this letter. 
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Call with Matthew Trujillo, Gregory Earl, Rachel Cohen on 4/2/24 at 2:30pm 
• Greg was at the county offices working with Jim O’Brian on 4/1 to obtain County permits.
• Greg is about halfway through the BCDC permit application form.
• Greg asked whether they are required to pull a permit that was retroactive to someone else’s

work (e.g. the pilings)?
o MT: Yes – submit the application with all the changes to the property and discuss with

the permit analyst whether you can narrow the scope after you lay out the whole
picture. The violations will be resolved when a permit is obtained. We recommend
submitting the permit application as complete.

• Greg shared that his father passed away the night before our call.
o MT:  If you feel like this is a lot to handle, apply to appeal the 35-day timeline – submit a

letter to us and we will send to ED/Chair. Be realistic with the amount of time you’re
asking for. 2-3x 35-days seems reasonable. Give personal reason as well as any technical
reasons why timeline needs to be extended.

• Greg asked whether it’s realistic/reasonable to submit the application within 35-days.
o MT: It’s tight but possible. Matthew recommends submitting the appeal and asking for

the extension.
• Greg asked about the maintenance topic we discussed on our site visit.

o MT:  Ask for maintenance provision so you can do minor repairs and in-kind
maintenance to your pilings and deck structures.

• Greg said they pulled a County permit to redo their bathroom, but the project never
materialized because it was Covid, and no contractors would come into the house. Does
renovating the bathroom count as maintenance?

o MT: Get our authorization for the bathroom renovation. You can wait until you’re ready
to do the work, and then approach us for a permit amendment.
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From: Goldzband, Larry@BCDC
To: Trujillo, Matthew@BCDC; Cohen, Rachel@BCDC
Subject: RE: Wasserman - extension
Date: Wednesday, April 17, 2024 11:53:19 AM

Yup!
 
Larry Goldzband, Executive Director
San Francisco Bay Conservation and Development Commission
larry.goldzband@bcdc.ca.gov
Mobile: (925) 818-1751
Desk: (415) 352-3653
375 Beale St., Ste. 510
San Francisco, CA  94105
 

         
 
 
 
 

From: Trujillo, Matthew@BCDC <Matthew.Trujillo@bcdc.ca.gov> 
Sent: Wednesday, April 17, 2024 11:51 AM
To: Goldzband, Larry@BCDC <larry.goldzband@bcdc.ca.gov>; Cohen, Rachel@BCDC <rachel.cohen@bcdc.ca.gov>
Subject: Re: Wasserman - extension
 
We’ll check the box for him. Approved, correct?
 
Best Regards,
 
MATTHEW TRUJILLO
Enforcement Policy Manager
(415) 352-3633
Matthew.Trujillo@bcdc.ca.gov
http://bcdc.ca.gov/enforcement

From: Goldzband, Larry@BCDC <larry.goldzband@bcdc.ca.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, April 17, 2024 11:34:25 AM
To: Cohen, Rachel@BCDC <rachel.cohen@bcdc.ca.gov>
Cc: Trujillo, Matthew@BCDC <Matthew.Trujillo@bcdc.ca.gov>
Subject: Wasserman - extension
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Larry Goldzband
Cell: (925) 818-1751
Office: (415) 352-3653
Sent from my iPhone
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San Francisco Bay Conservation and Development Commission 
375 Beale Street, Suite 510, San Francisco, California 94105 tel 415 352 3600 fax 888 348 5190 

State of California | Gavin Newsom – Governor | info@bcdc.ca.gov | www.bcdc.ca.gov  

July 10, 2024  

Shannon E. Clemence 
46 Sandy Beach Road 
Vallejo, CA 94590 
Via Email: redvine1960@gmail.com 

SUBJECT:   BCDC After-the-Fact Permit Application for the 46 Sandy Beach Deck, Shed, and 
Wall Project; BCDC Permit Application No. M2024.003.00 and Enforcement Case 
No. ER2023.058.00 

Dear Shannon: 

Thank you for your application received on June 10, 2024, for the Deck, Shed, and Wall Project 
at 46 Sandy Beach, Vallejo, CA 95490. This application is recognized by our staff as an after-the-
fact permit application associated with BCDC enforcement case No. ER2023.058.00. Our review 
of the application has determined that it is incomplete pending the submittal of the following 
items: 

1. Total Project and Site Information  
While the narrative document and site plans you provided partially describe the 
completed project, revisions are necessary to achieve a complete and accurate project 
description.  As described, our partial understanding of the project is as follows: 

a. Within the Bay (please confirm): 

i. Construct 49.5 linear feet of 48”-wide Trex and douglas fir wood 
cantilevered deck with 4” x 4” x 48” cedar fence panels along the 
southeasterly side of the deck and 36”-high wood and stainless-steel 
cable railing handrails along the southwesterly side of the deck1. 

b. Within the 100-foot shoreline band: 

                                                      

 

1 Please confirm that the cable railing handrail installation is only applicable to the southwesterly side 
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i. Construct an approximately 64'-4"-linear-foot soldier pile wall, consisting 
of: 

1. Two sliding barn doors constructed with 3- to 4-foot-long plywood 
and welded steel frames. 

2. Structural steel I-beam posts placed 3 feet deep in 12-foot 
diameter burials with 5000 P.S.I sakrete concrete footings. 

ii. Construct a 9'-4" x 9'-4" storage shed of 7 to 11 feet high on stilts 
supported by: 

1. 2”x 6” and 4” x 4” pressure treated wooden posts  

2. 10-3/4” x 8-3/4” concrete pier blocks and three low retaining 
walls made from 16” x 11” CMU garden wall blocks 

iii. Construct a retaining wall to support the stairs made from 8” x 8” x 16” 
CMU retaining cinder blocks. 

Please verify the accuracy and completeness of this information, including the total 
number of structures and their associated dimensions.  

2. Project Clarifications 

Please address the following: 

 Provide the area of all structures in square feet and any other dimensions 
(length, width, height, depth) for specific items as needed. 

 State the total current quantity of wooden support pilings and concrete support 
pilings. 

 Your application states the wood and concrete support pilings for the deck are all 
“existing.” However, on January 17, 20242, your authorized representative Mr. 
Gregory Earl confirmed that violations in connection to your BCDC enforcement 
case include the placement of concrete pilings. Please confirm that you are not 

                                                      

 

2 Please see the April 2, 2024 BCDC enforcement letter, which states “On January 17, 2024, staff visited the site 
with you and your authorized representative Mr. Gregory Earl and confirmed that violations consisted of 
placement of concrete pilings underneath the home and placement of decking, deck railing, and deck bracing 
substructure in BCDC’s Bay jurisdiction, and placement of a shed structure in BCDC’s 100-foot shoreline band 
jurisdiction. In conversations with staff, you have committed to applying for and obtaining an after-the-fact 
permit to authorize these projects.” 
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including any unauthorized piling installations in your permit application. If you 
do decide to include any post 1969 piling installations in your permit application, 
please provide a detailed description of the work completed including 
dimensions, materials, quantity, location, and installation dates. 

3. Fill and Shoreline Band Information  
It appears that the project contains work in both the Commission’s Bay and 100-foot 
shoreline band jurisdictions. The exact boundaries of the jurisdictional lines, however, 
are to be determined based on the revisions requested in Sections 1 and 3. Once the 
project description is accurately captured and the jurisdictional lines are properly 
mapped, please revise Boxes 3 and 4 on the application to reflect these adjustments. 
Boxes 3 and 4 are attached to this letter. You may also provide the corresponding 
corrections to Boxes 3 and 4 in a written response. 

4. Project Plans 

Please submit revised project plans that address the following issues: 

 BCDC has two distinct jurisdictions relevant to your application: the Bay, which is 
defined as the elevation line of mean high water (MHW) where tidal marsh 
vegetation is not present, and the 100-foot shoreline band, which is the area within 
a line 100 feet upland from the MHW line. Please ensure both jurisdictional lines are 
included and properly mapped on a drawing with all the proposed structures on it. 
According to our records, MHW at your site is at an elevation of 5.6 feet NAVD88. 
We cannot accept OHT and OHW waterlines as substitutes.  

 Please provide the design plans for the cantilevered deck as prepared and stamped 
by a registered civil engineer in California to confirm the structure is safe and will 
withstand earthquake forces.  Please let us know if this project required a local 
building permit.  

5. Photographs  
The photos provided in your application do not fully capture the scope of work and are 
not in legible size and format. Please submit full size photos that capture the full scope 
of work from multiple angles. We also recommend providing captions for each photo 
that indicate what is being photographed and where it is located.  

6. Processing Fee  
We have received and filed a $200 check from you on June 10, 2024. This amount will be 
applied to the total fee balance once the final fee amount is determined. 
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Processing fees for BCDC applications are based on the total project cost3and the permit 
type. Your application states the total project cost is $12,500 for work including a soldier 
pile wall, a storage shed, a catwalk deck, and other potential supporting structures. As 
described, the total project cost appears lower than comparable projects. In addition to 
the revised project activities list we are requesting in section 1, please review the 
accuracy of this number and submit an itemized breakdown. This will allow us to 
determine the appropriate processing fee for your application. 

7. Other Governmental Approvals  
Your application states that approvals are required from the following agencies: 

 The Solano County Department of Resource Management 

 The State Lands Commission 

 The San Francisco Bay Regional Water Quality Control Board 

Please provide a copy of all relevant permits, certification or waivers from the above 
agencies.  

8. Environmental Documentation  
Please provide environmental documentation, as required under the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), in the form of a categorical or statutory exemption, 
negative declaration, or other certified environmental impact document. 

9. Local Government Approval  
Please submit all the relevant documentation which clearly indicates that all the local 
government discretionary approvals have been received for the project. For example, if 
approval is required from the City of Vallejo, this documentation should be submitted. 

10. Public Notice  
Please find enclosed the completed “Notice of Application” which the Commission’s 
regulations require to be posted at or near the project site in a prominent location 
before a permit application can be filed. Please post the Notice so that it will be visible 
to the members of the public, complete the form that certifies that you have posted the 
Notice, and return the form to the Commission’s office.  

                                                      

 

3 Total project cost means all expenditures, including the cost for planning, engineering, architectural, and 

other services, made or to be made for designing the project plus the estimated cost of construction of all 
aspects of the project both inside and outside the Commission’s jurisdiction 
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Until the above-mentioned information is submitted and reviewed for adequacy, your 
application will be held as incomplete. 

We appreciate your time and collaboration in working towards a satisfactory BCDC permit 
application for this project. If you have any questions, please reach out to me directly at 
pierce.abrahamson@bcdc.ca.gov. 
 

Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
PIERCE ABRAHAMSON 
Shoreline Development Analyst 
 
Enclosures: 
Boxes 3 and 4 
Posting Notice 
 
 
PA/ra 
 
 
cc:  Vicki Caldwell, State Lands Commission, Vicki.Caldwell@slc.ca.gov 

County of Solano Department of Resource Management  
 San Francisco Bay Regional Water Board 
 US Army Corps of Engineers 
 City of Vallejo Planning Department 
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Site Visit Report 
 
Site Visit Date: August 20, 2024 
Enforcement Case Number: ER2023.058.00 
Permit Number: M2024.003.00 
Meeting Location: 46 Sandy Beach Road, Vallejo, CA, 94590 
BCDC Staff: Pierce Abrahamson, Jenn Hyman, Lisa Herron 
Other Attendees:  
Shannon E. Clemence (homeowner) 
 

Agenda: 
1. Determine bay coverage of enforcement-related deck 
2. Assess age of pilings 
3. Assess age of other decks 

Next Steps:  
1. Shannon to submit revised application addressing points raised in the last letter AND 

submit under the deck photos, as it was high tide when we visited 
2. Internal check in on determining whether the deck violates our regulations 
3. Coordinate with enforcement team on timing of penalties in relation to application 

progress  

Notes Summary: 
1. The “new” deck coverage is clearly more than outlined in the application/site plan. 

However, it’s unclear how much of what isn’t in the application was merely a 
replacement of what burnt down in a fire or not. 
 

2. The site visit wasn’t as helpful as anticipated given it was high tide. We couldn’t 
determine definitively whether there are new pilings and what debris exists under 
there, but it does seem likely that her deck doesn’t require them as they are 
cantilevered.  

 
3. The shed and the retaining wall don’t appear to be issues from a regulatory perspective. 

 
>>TRUE? This is inside the shoreline band, no?  
 
*I need to find out what was built on the community easement – land the neighbor says 
she can’t build on.  
 

4. Another issue to inform enforcement: her neighbor is attaching their structurally failing 
property to her seawall 
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>> I need details. What are the regulations on this? Also, that property looks like it’s 
falling apart. How do we handle that?  

  

See Attached Photos/Drawings In folder for Further Information 
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PROJECT OWNER: Shannon Clemence
PROJECT LOCATION : 46 Sandy Beach Road, Vallejo, CA 94590
APN: 0062020210
BCDC ENFORCEMENT CASE: ER2023-058-00

TOTAL PROJECT & SITE INFORMATION -  Attachment (Page 5 - Box 2)
1- PROJECT DESCRIPTION
 After-the-fact permitting for the construction of:
 (A)  SOLDIER PILE WALL - 64'-4" Lineal feet of privacy and protective barrier fencing.
 (B) STORAGE SHED - a 9'-4" x 9'-4" shed that contains no electricity or plumbing.
 (C)  ADA/FIRE ESCAPE CATWALK DECK - 48" wide X  49'-6" Lineal feet of cantilevered ADA/�re escape catwalk   
 decking.

2- EXISTING CONDITIONS
 The high tide (OHT) waterline is identi�ed as 5'-5" and low tide (OHW) waterline is 1'-3" (please see    
 ELEVATIONS-sheets 7 - for all (3) sets of plans. The cantilevered CATWALK DECKING is approximately 6'-2" 
 in elevation and descends to 7'-6" at the south-easterly corner of the residence.
 
3-  BATHYMETRIC FEATURES 
 The topography under 46 Sandy Beach Road, features a rocky beach littered with concrete and asphalt debris,     
 as a former dumping spot and vacant lot. Sediment movement is largely contained by the existence of the rock,  
 asphalt and concrete debris. 

4- ENDANGERED & THREATENED SPECIES
 To the best of my knowledge, I have not been able to identify any endangered or threatened species, under my  
 home during any low tide activity, as the water recedes well beyond any sustainable habitat and there are no   
 tidal pools or similar. 

5- SUBTIDAL AREAS
 The subtidal area under 46 Sandy Beach Road, is directly a�ected by extreme tidal action and does not sustain   
 marine life. Further, directly under the residence, there are no tidal pools, sea grass beds or habitats for marine  life. 

6- RELEASE OF POLLUTANTS
 There has been no release of pollutants or unlawful discharges of any hazardous contaminants on or within the  
 property boundaries, during my ownership of 46 Sandy Beach Road. Pollutants or contaminants will NOT be   
 introduced to the property or waterway, at any time.

7- TOXIC CONTAMINATION
 There has been no release of pollutants or unlawful discharges of any hazardous contaminants on or within the  
 property boundaries, during my ownership of 46 Sandy Beach Road. Pollutants or contaminants will NOT be   
 introduced to the property or waterway.

8-  WATER CERTIFICATION
 There are NO water quality or waste discharge requirements, that are applicable to this project, to the best of my  
 knowledge.
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Outlook

Re: Regarding 46 Sandy Beach Rd, Vallejo

From Usher, Anne@BCDC <anne.usher@bcdc.ca.gov>
Date Wed 2/12/2025 10:22 AM
To Caldwell, Vicki@SLC <Vicki.Caldwell@slc.ca.gov>

Good morning, Vicki! Thanks so much for letting me know - and so quickly 🙂 I really appreciate it.

Best,
Anne

From: Caldwell, Vicki@SLC <Vicki.Caldwell@slc.ca.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, February 12, 2025 5:25 AM
To: Usher, Anne@BCDC <anne.usher@bcdc.ca.gov>
Subject: RE: Regarding 46 Sandy Beach Rd, Vallejo
 
WARNING: This message is from an external source. Verify the sender and exercise caution when clicking links or opening attachments.

Good morning, Anne,
I hope this email finds you well!
The Lease Amendment to Lease 9313 for Shannon Clemence for the 62.63 sq. ft. deck addition is scheduled
for Commission consideration at our April 2, 2025, meeting.
Here is the area of deck addition for ADA compliance.

 
Please let me know if you have any additional questions.
Thank you,
Vicki
 
Vicki Caldwell, (she, her) Compliance/Enforcement Officer
Land Management Division
CALIFORNIA STATE LANDS COMMISSION
100 Howe Avenue, Suite 100-South
Sacramento CA 95825
916.574.1894
Vicki.Caldwell@slc.ca.gov
Work Hours: Monday – Friday, 6 a.m.- 3 p.m.

Firefox https://outlook.office365.com/mail/inbox/id/AAQkADlkMWQwNjA...

1 of 2 12/02/2025, 10:25 AM
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From: Usher, Anne@BCDC <anne.usher@bcdc.ca.gov>
Sent: Tuesday, February 11, 2025 3:31 PM
To: Caldwell, Vicki@SLC <Vicki.Caldwell@slc.ca.gov>
Subject: Regarding 46 Sandy Beach Rd, Vallejo

Attention:  This email originated from outside of SLC and should be treated with extra caution.

Hi Vicki,

I hope you're doing well. I wanted to see if you could please tell me where things stand with your
consideration of an amendment to SLC's lease for 46 Sandy Beach Road in Vallejo (Shannon Clemence is
the property owner).

I understand from speaking with Shannon's partner, Greg, that were in touch with her this summer and did a
site visit after initially informing her that her construction on the house needed to be taken down because it
was done without first obtaining the amendment. (And noting our enforcement case). I see that she was also
in touch with someone else on SLC's staff.

Please let me know when you get a chance. Thanks!

Best,
Anne

Anne Usher
Enforcement Policy Analyst
(415) 352-3662
Anne.Usher@bcdc.ca.gov

San Francisco Bay Conservation and Development Commission
http://bcdc.ca.gov/enforcement
375 Beale St., Suite 510
San Francisco, CA  94105
FAX: (415) 352-3606
Main Number: (415) 352-3600
Business Days & Hours: M-F 8:30a – 5:00p

Firefox https://outlook.office365.com/mail/inbox/id/AAQkADlkMWQwNjA...

2 of 2 12/02/2025, 10:25 AM

Exhibit 10

https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.slc.ca.gov%2F&data=05%7C02%7Canne.usher%40bcdc.ca.gov%7Cd9b82c0d534e42056d0208dd4b68c2fe%7Cdd8771a855304333949ec4600f5bca71%7C0%7C0%7C638749635524063669%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=ouyVLko2lo%2B2pCjIc09JZ7E8Fel04HyIDzvQ9fgO9o0%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.slc.ca.gov%2F&data=05%7C02%7Canne.usher%40bcdc.ca.gov%7Cd9b82c0d534e42056d0208dd4b68c2fe%7Cdd8771a855304333949ec4600f5bca71%7C0%7C0%7C638749635524063669%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=ouyVLko2lo%2B2pCjIc09JZ7E8Fel04HyIDzvQ9fgO9o0%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.slc.ca.gov%2F&data=05%7C02%7Canne.usher%40bcdc.ca.gov%7Cd9b82c0d534e42056d0208dd4b68c2fe%7Cdd8771a855304333949ec4600f5bca71%7C0%7C0%7C638749635524063669%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=ouyVLko2lo%2B2pCjIc09JZ7E8Fel04HyIDzvQ9fgO9o0%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.slc.ca.gov%2F&data=05%7C02%7Canne.usher%40bcdc.ca.gov%7Cd9b82c0d534e42056d0208dd4b68c2fe%7Cdd8771a855304333949ec4600f5bca71%7C0%7C0%7C638749635524063669%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=ouyVLko2lo%2B2pCjIc09JZ7E8Fel04HyIDzvQ9fgO9o0%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ftwitter.com%2FCAStateLands&data=05%7C02%7Canne.usher%40bcdc.ca.gov%7Cd9b82c0d534e42056d0208dd4b68c2fe%7Cdd8771a855304333949ec4600f5bca71%7C0%7C0%7C638749635524078010%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=3Os%2BGhv%2FkJTaKA%2Ffg8yXXiLdg44kacERDdC2Ezxf%2Byg%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ftwitter.com%2FCAStateLands&data=05%7C02%7Canne.usher%40bcdc.ca.gov%7Cd9b82c0d534e42056d0208dd4b68c2fe%7Cdd8771a855304333949ec4600f5bca71%7C0%7C0%7C638749635524078010%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=3Os%2BGhv%2FkJTaKA%2Ffg8yXXiLdg44kacERDdC2Ezxf%2Byg%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ftwitter.com%2FCAStateLands&data=05%7C02%7Canne.usher%40bcdc.ca.gov%7Cd9b82c0d534e42056d0208dd4b68c2fe%7Cdd8771a855304333949ec4600f5bca71%7C0%7C0%7C638749635524078010%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=3Os%2BGhv%2FkJTaKA%2Ffg8yXXiLdg44kacERDdC2Ezxf%2Byg%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ftwitter.com%2FCAStateLands&data=05%7C02%7Canne.usher%40bcdc.ca.gov%7Cd9b82c0d534e42056d0208dd4b68c2fe%7Cdd8771a855304333949ec4600f5bca71%7C0%7C0%7C638749635524078010%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=3Os%2BGhv%2FkJTaKA%2Ffg8yXXiLdg44kacERDdC2Ezxf%2Byg%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.instagram.com%2Fcastatelands%2F&data=05%7C02%7Canne.usher%40bcdc.ca.gov%7Cd9b82c0d534e42056d0208dd4b68c2fe%7Cdd8771a855304333949ec4600f5bca71%7C0%7C0%7C638749635524091490%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=HoYVVa1Yg4Hhuia1HT3Vakiq7Z4Fh33qdya2sY5N8Dc%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.instagram.com%2Fcastatelands%2F&data=05%7C02%7Canne.usher%40bcdc.ca.gov%7Cd9b82c0d534e42056d0208dd4b68c2fe%7Cdd8771a855304333949ec4600f5bca71%7C0%7C0%7C638749635524091490%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=HoYVVa1Yg4Hhuia1HT3Vakiq7Z4Fh33qdya2sY5N8Dc%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.instagram.com%2Fcastatelands%2F&data=05%7C02%7Canne.usher%40bcdc.ca.gov%7Cd9b82c0d534e42056d0208dd4b68c2fe%7Cdd8771a855304333949ec4600f5bca71%7C0%7C0%7C638749635524091490%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=HoYVVa1Yg4Hhuia1HT3Vakiq7Z4Fh33qdya2sY5N8Dc%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.youtube.com%2Fchannel%2FUCa-xUoPcJ4Ph7qWhnD4uQsQ&data=05%7C02%7Canne.usher%40bcdc.ca.gov%7Cd9b82c0d534e42056d0208dd4b68c2fe%7Cdd8771a855304333949ec4600f5bca71%7C0%7C0%7C638749635524105312%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=mNijmx3s4UdMJwVJ3rKGj6yrsBRDNYSKxH78EfYuKE4%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.youtube.com%2Fchannel%2FUCa-xUoPcJ4Ph7qWhnD4uQsQ&data=05%7C02%7Canne.usher%40bcdc.ca.gov%7Cd9b82c0d534e42056d0208dd4b68c2fe%7Cdd8771a855304333949ec4600f5bca71%7C0%7C0%7C638749635524105312%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=mNijmx3s4UdMJwVJ3rKGj6yrsBRDNYSKxH78EfYuKE4%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.youtube.com%2Fchannel%2FUCa-xUoPcJ4Ph7qWhnD4uQsQ&data=05%7C02%7Canne.usher%40bcdc.ca.gov%7Cd9b82c0d534e42056d0208dd4b68c2fe%7Cdd8771a855304333949ec4600f5bca71%7C0%7C0%7C638749635524105312%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=mNijmx3s4UdMJwVJ3rKGj6yrsBRDNYSKxH78EfYuKE4%3D&reserved=0
mailto:Anne.Usher@bcdc.ca.gov
mailto:Anne.Usher@bcdc.ca.gov
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fbcdc.ca.gov%2Fenforcement&data=05%7C02%7Canne.usher%40bcdc.ca.gov%7Cd9b82c0d534e42056d0208dd4b68c2fe%7Cdd8771a855304333949ec4600f5bca71%7C0%7C0%7C638749635524119109%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=PBfTwIr%2BjRVbixBsm82ri3JGKlzXGkrjDQVQ%2FSv2clo%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fbcdc.ca.gov%2Fenforcement&data=05%7C02%7Canne.usher%40bcdc.ca.gov%7Cd9b82c0d534e42056d0208dd4b68c2fe%7Cdd8771a855304333949ec4600f5bca71%7C0%7C0%7C638749635524119109%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=PBfTwIr%2BjRVbixBsm82ri3JGKlzXGkrjDQVQ%2FSv2clo%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fbcdc.ca.gov%2Fenforcement&data=05%7C02%7Canne.usher%40bcdc.ca.gov%7Cd9b82c0d534e42056d0208dd4b68c2fe%7Cdd8771a855304333949ec4600f5bca71%7C0%7C0%7C638749635524119109%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=PBfTwIr%2BjRVbixBsm82ri3JGKlzXGkrjDQVQ%2FSv2clo%3D&reserved=0


BACK-FLOW
PREVENTER
BACK-FLOW
PREVENTER

46 SANDY BEACH ROAD -EASEMENTS & SURVEY MONUMENTS

46

16

16

JEREMY GRAY

JEREMY GRAY

46 SANDY 
SURVEY 

MONUMENT #4

46 SANDY 
SURVEY 

MONUMENT #3

46 SANDY 
SURVEY 

MONUMENT #2

46 SANDY 
SURVEY 

MONUMENT #1

BACK-FLOW
PREVENTER

Exhibit 10





Greg Earl, Shannon Clemence’s partner 
Phone conversation Feb. 6, 2025.  

Greg said that a neighbor sued them, turned them in to BCDC. 

He said Shannon bought the house in 2019 and thought she could expand it. She called the 
county during Covid and asked what was required. The county permitted a catwalk deck. And 
an abatement company told her she has asbestos.  

Told her needed the cat walk. Her mom is in a wheelchair. It would help with an exit. 

Sandy Beach Improvement Assoc. (quasi HOA). They are operating a ‘parking scheme’ on her 
and other parking areas. Michael Thompson = atty of record. They – filed a quit claim – can’t 
charge for parking. She asked county what can do. They wouldn’t do anything. So she built a 
wall system in front of her house. County said as long as within 7 ft you’re ok. No one told her 
re BCDC.  

Neighbor, other said (recently died). Mr. Simms. Did work on Shannon’s house, including 
concrete pilings to support under the home. Before she bought it. Not sure when he did this. 
Then county allowed her to build a shed – 9x9 shed on her property. Claims again county didn’t 
mention BCDC.  

And she was going to do a bathroom remodel. Got permits but couldn’t do the work – Covid. 
Didn’t close out the permit with the county.  

They hired a civil engineer, Ali, contracted. Just came out two days ago to certify the work 
that’s been performed. Doing the drawings now. Yes, violations.  

Spoke with Matthew two months ago. Matthew and Rachel did a site visit a long time ago – 
over a year ago.  

They applied for an after the fact permit. 

>> He’s going to email me his records for when they submitted the permit and who on our staff,
if anyone, was assigned to their case. I flagged the email from Vicki Caldwell.

Exhibit 11



Outlook

46 Sandy Beach Road

From Gregory Earl <alchemistsguild@gmail.com>
Date Fri 2/7/2025 9:37 AM
To Usher, Anne@BCDC <anne.usher@bcdc.ca.gov>
Cc shannon clemence <redvine1960@gmail.com>

1 attachment (2 MB)

BCDC STATE LANDS DOCS Feb 06-2025.PDF;

You don't often get email from alchemistsguild@gmail.com. Learn why this is important

WARNING: This message is from an external source. Verify the sender and exercise caution when clicking links or
opening attachments.

CC:
Redvine1960@gmail.com
Owner of 46 Sandy Beach Road -Shannon Clemence

Dear Ms. Usher,
Thank you for the opportunity to discuss 46 Sandy Beach Road and to provide you with our
communication history with State Lands and BCDC.

As discussed earlier yesterday,  Ms. Clemence has contracted with Ali Mahalat Engineering
to guide us through this process of permitting and compliance with all the relevant agencies
and authorities.

My understanding is that Mr. Malahat has experience in this process and has a working
relationship with BCDC, Solano County Department of Resource Management and other
governing agencies.

I last spoke with Mathew Trujillo a few months ago and gave him a similar update.

Ms. Clemence has submitted her drawings already to BCDC with her permit application, and
my understanding is that Ali has taken her drawings and currently is in the process of
expanding upon and completing those.

Attached are the State Lands/BCDC communications you requested in a continuous PDF
file:
Vicki Caldwell / State Lands
Mathew Trujillo/ BCDC
Reyna Amezcua / BCDC
Pierce Abrahamson / BCDC
BCDC Permit Application

Please feel free to contact us anytime, Shannon and I are very motivated to resolve all
issues with 46 Sandy Beach Road.

Firefox https://outlook.office365.com/mail/inbox/id/AAQkADlkMWQwNjA...

1 of 2 07/02/2025, 12:37 PM
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Sincerely,
Gregory Earl
707-321-3562

Shannon Clemence
415-412-6981

Firefox https://outlook.office365.com/mail/inbox/id/AAQkADlkMWQwNjA...

2 of 2 07/02/2025, 12:37 PM
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Docusign Envelope ID: 21994B34-A8AD-49D9-A398-41B7B1BBF0A7 

San Francisco Bay Conservation and Development Commission 
375 Beale Street, Suite 510, San Francisco, California 94105 tel 415 352 3600 fax 888 348 5190 

State of California | Gavin Newsom – Governor | info@bcdc.ca.gov | www.bcdc.ca.gov 

Via Electronic Mail 

March 19, 2025 

ATTN: Shannon Clemence 
46 Sandy Beach Rd. 
Vallejo, CA 94590 
Email: redivine1960@gmail.com 

SUBJECT: Notification of Recission of the Opportunity to Resolve BCDC Enforcement Case 
ER2023.058.00 Using the Standardized Administrative Fines Process 

Dear Ms. Clemence, 

This letter serves as a notification that the San Francisco Bay Conservation and Development 
Commission (BCDC) will initiate a formal enforcement process regarding the following 
matters: 

• In the BCDC’s 100-foot shoreline band jurisdiction, the placement of unauthorized fill: a
shed.

• In the BCDC’s Bay jurisdiction, the placement of unauthorized fill: concrete pilings under
the home, a deck, deck railings, and a deck-bracing substructure.

These alleged violations are associated with the property located at 46 Sandy Beach Road, 
Vallejo, Solano County. On April 5, 2024, you received a “Notice of Violation” notifying you of 
your opportunity to resolve the alleged violations at your property by completing certain 
corrective actions and by paying a standardized fine. BCDC then notified you on April 17, 2024, 
that the Commission chair and executive director had approved an extension of the standard 
thirty-five day grace period until June 20, 2024, pursuant to the BCDC’s regulations (14 CCR) 
Section 11391(b). 

Pursuant to Section 11390(d) of the BCDC’s regulations, the executive director has determined 
that you have not made a good faith effort to correct the alleged violations. Therefore, the 
opportunity to resolve the violations through the standardized fine process in now rescinded. 

You will receive a Violation Report and Complaint for Administrative Civil Liability, initiating the 
formal enforcement process. This report will provide detailed information on the identified 
alleged violations; outline next steps, including the submission of a Statement of Defense or 
payment of the proposed administrative civil penalty; and include information regarding a 
hearing date before the Commission’s Enforcement Committee. 
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Docusign Envelope ID: 21994B34-A8AD-49D9-A398-41B7B1BBF0A7 
 

 

Shannon Clemence 
Enforcement Case No. ER2023.058.00 

Page 2 
March 19, 2025 

 
 

In the meantime, continue any efforts that are in progress to correct the alleged violations at 
your property while formal enforcement is pending. Should you successfully resolve your 
violations while formal enforcement is pending, then we may suspend this process prior to your 
final hearing before the commission. 

If you have any immediate questions, require clarification, or can provide evidence that the 
violations have been resolved, please feel free to contact me. 

Thank you for your attention to this matter. 
 

Sincerely, 
 
 
 

ANNE USHER 
Enforcement Analyst 
San Francisco Bay Conservation and Development Commission 
375 Beale Street, Suite 510 
San Francisco, California 94105 
Tel: 415-352-3662 
Fax: 415-352-3606 
Email: anne.usher@bcdc.ca.gov 
Website: www.bcdc.ca.gov 

 
Encl. 

 
Cc: Matthew Trujillo, enforcement manager (via email) 

Amanda Boyd, staff attorney (via email) 
Vicki Caldwell, compliance/enforcement officer, California State Lands Commission, 
Vicki.Caldwell@slc.ca.gov 
Denise Feiling, building permit technician II, Solano County’s building division, 
dmfeiling@solanocounty.com 
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San Francisco Bay Conservation and Development Commission 
375 Beale Street, Suite 510, San Francisco, California 94105 tel 415 352 3600 fax 888 348 5190 

State of California | Gavin Newsom – Governor | info@bcdc.ca.gov | www.bcdc.ca.gov 

 

 
 

Via Electronic Mail Only 

 
April 17, 2024 

 
ATTN: Shannon E. Clemence c/o Gregory Earl 
46 Sandy Beach Road 
Vallejo, CA 94590 
E-mail: redvine1960@gmail.com, alchemistsguild@gmail.com 

SUBJECT: Extension of 35-Day Time Limit (BCDC Enforcement Case ER2023.058.00) 

Dear Shannon: 

On April 11, 2024, BCDC staff received your appeal to extend the 35-day deadline (“grace 
period”) to resolve the violations at 46 Sandy Beach Road, Vallejo, Solano County before fines 
begin accruing. The Commission’s Executive Director and Chair have approved an extension of 
the grace period until June 30, 2024, pursuant to 14 CCR § 11391(b). 

Please recall, to resolve the violations at your property (46 Sandy Beach Road) you should 
immediately file a complete BCDC permit application. If this case remains unresolved after June 
30, 2024, then standardized administrative fines will begin accruing on July 1, 2024, pursuant to 
14 CCR § 11390(a)(4). 

Please retain a copy of this notice for your records; and let us know of any questions you may 
have. 

Sincerely, 
 

 
MATTHEW TRUJILLO 
Enforcement Policy Manager 
San Francisco Bay Conservation and Development Commission 
375 Beale Street, Suite 510 
San Francisco, California 94105 
Tel: 415-352-3633 
Email: matthew.trujillo@bcdc.ca.gov 
Website: www.bcdc.ca.gov 

MT / mm 
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San Francisco Bay Conservation and Development Commission 
375 Beale Street, Suite 510, San Francisco, California 94105 tel 415 352 3600 fax 888 348 5190 

State of California | Gavin Newsom – Governor | info@bcdc.ca.gov | www.bcdc.ca.gov 

 

 
Via Electronic and Certified Mail 

 
April 2, 2024 

 
ATTN: Shannon E. Clemence 
46 Sandy Beach Road 
Vallejo, CA 94590 
E-mail: redvine1960@gmail.com 

SUBJECT: Notice of Violations (BCDC Enforcement Case ER2023.058.00) 

Dear Shannon E. Clemence: 

On September 19, 2023, BCDC staff received a report alleging unauthorized activities at 46 
Sandy Beach Road in Vallejo, Solano County (Solano County Assessor’s Parcel Number 0062- 
020-210). Staff informed you of these alleged violations of McAteer-Petris Act Section 66632(a) 
in an initial contact letter mailed to you on November 20, 2023. On January 17, 2024, staff 
visited the site with you and your authorized representative Mr. Gregory Earl and confirmed 
that violations consisted of placement of concrete pilings underneath the home and placement 
of decking, deck railing, and deck bracing substructure in BCDC’s Bay jurisdiction, and 
placement of a shed structure in BCDC’s 100-foot shoreline band jurisdiction. In conversations 
with staff, you have committed to applying for and obtaining an after-the-fact permit to 
authorize these projects. 

You have thirty-five (35) calendar days from the date of this letter to resolve the outstanding 
violation described below before fines begin to accrue pursuant to California Code of 
Regulations, Title 14, § 11390(a)(4). A detailed description of how fines accrue is attached to 
this letter in Appendix 1. 

Description of Violations. The placement of unauthorized fill in the Bay including concrete 
pilings underneath the home, and decking (including deck railing and substructure). The 
placement of unauthorized fill in the 100-foot shoreline band, consisting of a shed structure. 

This activity represents a violation of the following: 

McAteer-Petris Act Section 66632(a). Any person or governmental agency 
wishing to place fill, to extract materials, or to make any substantial change in 
use of any water, land or structure, within the area of the commission’s 
jurisdiction shall secure a permit from the commission and, if required by law or 
by ordinance, from any city or county within which any part of the work is to be 
performed. For purposes of this title, “fill” means earth or any other substance or 
material, including pilings or structures placed on pilings, and structures floating 
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Shannon E. Clemence 
Enf. Case ER 2023 . 058 . 00 

Page 2 
April 2 , 2024 

 

 
at some or all times and moored for extended periods, such as houseboats and 
floating docks. For the purposes of this section “materials” means items 
exceeding twenty dollars ($20) in value. 

To resolve your violations, you must apply for and obtain a BCDC permit. If you fail to obtain a 
permit within 125 days of the mailing date of this notice, you will be subject to a formal 
enforcement action that may include up to $30,000 in administrative civil penalties per 
violation (e.g., each individual instance of fill) found at the site and a Commission cease-and- 
desist order that mandates the removal of the unauthorized fill at the site. 

I look forward to continuing to work with you to bring your property into compliance. Please 
don’t hesitate to reach out with any questions. 

 
Sincerely, 

 

 

MATTHEW TRUJILLO 
Enforcement Policy Manager 
San Francisco Bay Conservation and Development Commission 
375 Beale Street, Suite 510 
San Francisco, California 94105 
Tel: 415-352-3633 
Fax: 415-352-3606 
Email: matthew.trujillo@bcdc.ca.gov 
Website: www.bcdc.ca.gov 

MT/mm 
 

cc: (via e-mail only): 
SF Bay Regional Water Quality Control Board, Erin Fairley, erin.fairley@waterboards.ca.gov 
US Army Corps of Engineers, Bryan Matsumoto, bryan.t.matsumoto@usace.army.mil 
CA Dept. of Fish and Wildlife, Sabrina Dunn, sabrina.funn@wildlife.ca.gov 
CA State Lands Commission, Vicki Caldwell, vicki.caldwell@slc.ca.gov 
Solano County Building Department, Denise Feiling, dmfeiling@solanocounty.com 
Solano County Building Department, building@solanocounty.com 
Gregory Earl, alchemistsguild@gmail.com 
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Figure 1. Image taken underneath home of some new pilings and new wooden deck substructure. 

 
Figure 2. Image showing some new pilings and a portion of the new deck. 
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Figure 3. Image showing some new pilings underneath home and new wooden bracing for deck. 

 
Figure 4. Image showing new shed structure in the shoreline band. 
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Appendix 1. Explanation of Standardized Fines Pursuant to the BCDC’s Regulations 
(Effective October 1, 2022) 

Enforcement Options. 
Pursuant to Chapter 13, Subchapter 2, Article 3 of the BCDC’s administrative regulations, you 
may resolve each alleged violation without having to go through a Commission enforcement 
proceeding by taking each and every corrective action required by this letter and by paying the 
standardized fines specified in the BCDC’s regulations §11390(a) or (b) or (c), as described 
below. Pursuant to §11390(d), if you do not make a good-faith effort to correct the alleged 
violations; have not corrected all the alleged violations within 125 days of the mailing date of 
this letter (or by the date(s) specified below); or you do not pay the amount of standardized 
fines assessed by the date payment is due, you may no longer have the option to settle this 
matter with standardized fines and we may, pursuant to BCDC’s regulations §11321-11334, 
commence a formal enforcement proceeding that would include public hearings before the 
Commission, and could lead to the issuance of a cease and desist and civil penalty order with an 
administratively imposed civil penalty of between $10 and $2,000 per day, up to a maximum of 
$30,000 per alleged violation. 

Opportunity to Complete Corrective Action without Imposition of a Standardized Fine. 
Pursuant to §11388, except as provided in §11390(c), if the person responsible for the alleged 
violation submits information demonstrating that the alleged violation(s) have not occurred or 
that the responsible person has completed each and every corrective action required by this 
notice within 35 days after the date of mailing printed above, the Commission shall not impose 
any standardized fine. 

Opportunity to Complete Correction Action with Imposition of a Standardized Fine. 
Except as provided in § 11390 (c) and (d), if the person responsible for the alleged violations 
noted above fails to resolve each violation within 35 days of the date of this letter, that person 
may resolve their enforcement case by completing each and every corrective action required by 
this letter and by paying a fine in the amount provided in § 11390(a) and, where applicable, (b), 
as follows: 

§ 11390(a)(1). For the failure to submit an executed Commission permit before commencing
the work authorized by the permit, or, for any permit issued to authorize previously
commenced or completed work, for failure to return an acknowledged, executed permit
within the time period stated in the permit:

Standardized Fines. 
If the executed permit is received between 36 and 65 days after the date of the mailing of this 
letter, you may resolve the penalty portion of the alleged violation by paying a standardized 
fine of $2,000. If the executed permit is received more than 65 days after the date of the 
mailing of this letter, you may resolve the alleged violation by paying a standardized fine of 
$5,000, plus $500 per day, from the 65th day to the date the executed permit is received, up to 
a maximum fine of $30,000 per violation. 
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§ 11390(a)(2). For the failure to submit any document other than an executed Commission
permit in the form, manner or time required by a Commission permit:

Standardized Fines. 
For each document submitted between 36 and 65 days after the date of the mailing of this 
letter, you may resolve alleged violation by paying a standardized fine of $2,000 per document. 
For each document submitted between 66 and 95 days after the date of the mailing of this 
letter, you may resolve the alleged violation by paying a standardized fine of $5,000 per 
document. For each document submitted more than 95 days after the date of the mailing of 
this letter, you may resolve the alleged violation by paying a standardized fine of $5,000 per 
document, plus $500 per day, from the 96th day to the date the document is received, up to a 
maximum fine of $30,000 per document. 

§ 11390 (a)(3). For the failure to comply with any condition required by a Commission permit
not covered by (a)(1) or (a)(2):

Standardized Fines. 
If corrected between 36 and 65 days after the date of the mailing of this letter, you may resolve 
the alleged violation by paying a standardized fine of $2,000 for each violation of each separate 
permit requirement. If corrected between 66 and 95 days after the date of the mailing of this 
letter, you may resolve the alleged violation by paying a standardized fine of $5,000 for each 
violation of each separate permit requirement. If corrected more than 95 days after the date of 
the mailing of this letter, you may resolve the alleged violation by paying a standardized fine of 
$5,000 for each violation noted above, plus $500 per day per violation, from the 96th day to the 
date the required improvements are provided, up to a maximum fine of $30,000 per permit 
requirement. 

§ 11390 (a)(4). For the failure to obtain a Commission permit or an amendment to a
previously issued Commission permit prior to undertaking any activity that can be authorized
by an administrative permit or an amendment to a previously issued Commission permit:

Standardized Fines. 
If either a complete and properly executed application accompanied by a check or money order 
for the application fee is submitted between 36 and 65 days and a permit or permit 
amendment is obtained within 155 days after the date of the mailing of this letter, or the 
unauthorized activity is completely corrected between 36 and 65 days after the mailing date of 
this letter, then you may resolve the alleged violation by paying a standardized fine of $2,000. 

If a complete, executed application and fee is submitted between 66 and 95 days and a permit 
or permit amendment is obtained within 185 days after the date of the mailing of this letter, or 
the unauthorized activity is completely corrected between 66 and 95 days after the mailing 
date of this letter, then you may resolve the alleged violation by paying a standardized fine of 
$5,000. 
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If a complete, executed application and fee is submitted, or the unauthorized activity is 
completely corrected, more than 95 days after the date of the mailing of this letter then you 
may resolve the violation by paying a standardized fine of $5,000 plus $500 per day from the 
96th day to the date that either the complete, executed application and fee are submitted or the 
unauthorized activity is completely corrected, up to a maximum fine of $30,000 per violation. 

§ 11390 (a)(5). For the failure to obtain a Commission permit prior to undertaking any activity
that can be authorized by either a regionwide or abbreviated regionwide permit:

Standardized Fines. 
If either a complete notice of intent to proceed (NOI) under a regionwide or abbreviated 
regionwide permit is submitted between 36 and 65 days and said NOI is approved within 155 
days after the date of the mailing of this letter, or the unauthorized activity is completely 
corrected between 36 and 65 days, you may resolve the alleged violation by paying a 
standardized fine of $2,000. 

If either a complete NOI under a regionwide or abbreviated regionwide permit is submitted 
between 66 and 95 days and said NOI is approved within 185 days after the date of the mailing 
of this letter, or the unauthorized activity is completely corrected between 66 and 95 days, you 
may resolve the alleged violation by paying a standardized fine of $4,000. 

If either a complete NOI under a regionwide or abbreviated regionwide permit is submitted, or 
the unauthorized activity is completely corrected, more than 95 days after the date of the 
mailing of this letter, you may resolve the alleged violation by paying a standardized fine of 
$4,000, plus $500 per day, from the 96th day to the date the NOI is submitted or the 
unauthorized activity is completely corrected, up to a maximum fine of $30,000 per violation. 

§ 11390 (a)(6). For the placement of fill, the extraction of materials or a change in use that
could not be authorized under the Commission’s laws and policies:

Standardized Fines. 
If the violation is corrected and the area returned to its prior status between 36 and 65 days 
after the mailing of this letter, you may resolve the alleged violation by paying a standardized 
fine of $3,000. 

If the violation is corrected and the area returned to its prior status between 66 and 95 days 
after the mailing of this letter, you may resolve the alleged violation by paying a standardized 
fine of $8,000. 

If the violation is corrected and the area returned to its prior status more than 95 days after the 
mailing of this letter, you may resolve the alleged violation by paying a standardized fine of 
$8,000, plus $500 per day, to the date the violation is completely corrected, up to a maximum 
fine of $30,000 per violation. 
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§ 11390(b). A person believed to be responsible for any alleged violation must pay double the
amount listed in subsection (a) to resolve the alleged violation if that person has previously
paid, or has been assessed but has failed to pay, any standardized fine pursuant to § 11390(a)
and § 11391 within the five years prior to resolution of the alleged violation.

§ 11390(c). If a violation resolved pursuant to § 11388 is repeated by the same person within
five years of the resolution of the prior violation, § 11390(a) and (b) shall not apply. Instead, the
person believed to be responsible for the subsequent alleged violation may resolve the
subsequent alleged violation by paying $200 per day for each day the alleged violation occurs or
persists after the mailing date of this letter.
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Interview with Gregory Earl and Shannon Clemence, Sept. 11, 2025 

I asked about the staircase at the front of her house, which a neighbor alleged Shannon had 
installed. She denied doing so, saying it has been there since 1959.  

Regarding the fence, Shannon said that when the fire that happened next door – before she 
purchased the house in 2019 – the fence had partially burned down. (One side of her house and 
part of the roof were also harmed).  

She said she asked Solano County if she needed to replace it and staff told her that she didn’t 
need a permit if certain conditions were met. As with the other construction on her house, 
Shannon contends that staff did not tell her that she first needed a BCDC permit.  

She and her partner installed the new fence in September 2020. 
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Outlook

Re: 46 Sandy Beach Road fences

From Usher, Anne@BCDC <anne.usher@bcdc.ca.gov>
Date Mon 9/15/2025 9:05 PM
To Gregory Earl <alchemistsguild@gmail.com>

Hi Greg,

Enormous thanks! I really appreciate it. 

Best,
Anne 

From: Gregory Earl <alchemistsguild@gmail.com>
Sent: Monday, September 15, 2025 3:15 PM
To: Usher, Anne@BCDC <anne.usher@bcdc.ca.gov>
Subject: 46 Sandy Beach Road fences

WARNING: This message is from an external source. Verify the sender and exercise caution when clicking links or
opening attachments.

Anne, as requested, here is the history of fences located on 46 Sandy Beach since Clemence's
ownership from 2019 and onward.

Firefox https://outlook.office.com/mail/id/AAkALgAAAAAAHYQDEapmEc...

1 of 4 17/09/2025, 2:32 PM
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Firefox https://outlook.office.com/mail/id/AAkALgAAAAAAHYQDEapmEc...
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Statement of Defense Form 

BY  November 19, 2025 : (1) COMPLETE THIS FORM (OR A DOCUMENT PROVIDING THE 
INFORMATION REQUESTED BY THIS FORM), (2) INCLUDE WITH THE COMPLETED FORM 
ALL DOCUMENTS, DECLARATIONS, UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY, AND OTHER 
EVIDENCE YOU WANT PLACED IN THE RECORD AND TO BE CONSIDERED BY THE 
COMMISSION, (3) LIST ANY WITNESSES WHOSE DECLARATION IS PART OF THE STAFF 
CASE AS IDENTIFIED IN THE VIOLATION REPORT/COMPLAINT FOR ADMINISTRATIVE 
CIVIL LIABILITY THAT YOU WISH TO CROSS-EXAMINE, THE AREA OF KNOWLEDGE 
ABOUT WHICH YOU WANT TO CROSS-EXAMINE THE WITNESS, AND THE INFORMATION 
YOU HOPE TO ELICIT BY CROSS-EXAMINATION, AND (4) RETURN THE COMPLETED 
FORM AND ALL INCLUDED MATERIALS TO THE SAN FRANCISCO BAY CONSERVATION 
AND DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION STAFF. FAILURE TO DO SO, OR TO SUBMIT A 
WRITTEN EXTENSION REQUEST (AS DISCUSSED BELOW), MEANS THAT YOU WILL 
WAIVE THE OPPORTUNITY TO RAISE ANY DEFENSES OR MITIGATING FACTORS OR TO 
INTRODUCE ANY EVIDENCE AND THAT THE ENFORCEMENT COMMITTEE OR 
COMMISSION CAN REFUSE TO CONSIDER ANY STATEMENTS AND EVIDENCE THAT YOU 
SUBMIT AT A LATER DATE WHEN THE ENFORCEMENT COMMITTEE OR COMMISSION 
HEARS THIS MATTER. 

ANY STATEMENTS THAT YOU MAKE ON THIS FORM (OR IN A DOCUMENT PROVIDING 
THE INFORMATION REQUESTED BY THIS FORM) WILL BECOME PART OF THE 
ENFORCEMENT RECORD AND MAY BE USED AGAINST YOU. 

YOU MAY WISH TO CONSULT WITH OR RETAIN AN ATTORNEY BEFORE YOU COMPLETE 
THIS FORM OR OTHERWISE CONTACT THE COMMISSION ENFORCEMENT STAFF. 

This form is enclosed with a violation report/complaint for administrative civil liability. The violation 
report/complaint indicates that you may be responsible for or in some way involved in either a violation 
of the Commission's laws, a Commission permit, or a Commission cease and desist order. The violation 
report/complaint summarizes what the possible violation involves, who may be responsible for it, where 
and when it occurred, if the Commission staff is proposing any administrative civil penalty and, if so, 
how much, and other pertinent information concerning the possible violation. 

This form requires you to respond to the alleged facts contained in the violation report/complaint, to 
raise any defenses that you believe apply, and to inform the staff of all facts that you believe may 
exonerate you of any legal responsibility for the possible violation or may mitigate your responsibility. 
This form also requires you to enclose with the completed statement of defense form copies of all 
written documents, such as letters, photographs, maps, drawings, etc. and written declarations under 
penalty of perjury that you want the Commission to consider as part of this enforcement hearing. Failure 
to raise a defense or mitigating factor in or to submit evidence with your response to the violation 
report/complaint will waive your right to raise such defense or mitigating factor or to submit such 
evidence at the enforcement hearing on this matter. This form also requires you to identify by name any 
person whose declaration under penalty of perjury was submitted by staff with the violation 
report/complaint whom you may want to cross-examine at the enforcement hearing on this matter, the 
area of knowledge that you want to cover in the cross-examination, the nature of the testimony that you 
hope to elicit, and the reasons that you believe other means of producing this evidence are 
unsatisfactory. Finally, if the staff is only proposing a civil penalty (i.e., issuance of either a cease and 
desist order or a permit revocation order is not proposed), this form allows you to pay the proposed civil 
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penalty without contesting the matter if you chose to do so, subject to notification of the amount by the 
Commission. 

IF YOU WANT TO CROSS-EXAMINE ANY PERSON WHOSE DECLARATION UNDER 
PENALTY OF PERJURY STAFF HAS SUBMITTED WITH THE VIOLATION 
REPORT/COMPLAINT, YOU MUST COMPLETE PARAGRAPH EIGHT TO THIS STATEMENT 
OF DEFENSE FORM. 

Complete this form as fully and accurately as you can and return an original and one copy of the 
completed form and an original and one copy of all documents that you want to be made part of the 
record of the enforcement proceeding, no later than 35 days after this form was mailed to you, to the 
Commission's enforcement staff at the following address: 

SAN FRANCISCO BAY CONSERVATION AND DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION 
375 BEALE STREET, SUITE 510 

SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94105 

If you believe that you have good cause for not being able to complete this form and submit all written 
documents and any declarations under penalty of perjury that you want the Commission to consider 
within the required 35 days of its mailing, you may, within that time, submit a written extension request 
explaining why you need additional time to respond. If the Executive Director has issued a combined 
violation report and complaint for administrative liability, or only a compliant for administrative 
liability, your extension request shall include a waiver of and consent to extend the 60-day time limit for 
a hearing on the complaint under Government Code Section 66641.6(b). 

If the violation report/complaint that accompanied this statement of defense form included a proposed 
administrative civil penalty, you may resolve the civil penalty aspect of the alleged violation by simply 
providing to the staff a certified cashier's check in the amount of the proposed civil penalty within the 
35-day time period. If you choose to follow this alternative, the Executive Director will cash your check 
and place a brief summary of the violation and proposed administrative civil penalty along with a 
notation that you are choosing to pay the civil penalty rather than contesting it on an administrative 
permit listing. (See 14 C.C.R. § 11322(g).) If no Commissioner objects to the amount of the 
administrative civil penalty, your payment will resolve the civil penalty portion of the alleged violation. 
If a Commissioner objects to the amount of the proposed administrative civil penalty, the Commission 
shall determine by a majority of those present and voting whether to accept or object to the proposed 
civil penalty. If such a majority votes to accept the proposed civil penalty, your payment will resolve the 
civil penalty portion of the alleged violation. If such a majority objects to the proposed civil penalty, the 
Commission shall direct the staff to return the money paid to you and shall direct you to file your 
completed statement of defense form and all supporting documents within 35 days of the Commission's 
actions. Of course, you also have the opportunity of contesting the fine from the outset by completing 
this form and filing it and all supporting documents within 35 days of its having been mailed to you. 

If you have any questions, please contact ANNE USHER of the Commission Enforcement Staff as soon 
as possible at telephone number 415-352-3662. 
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1. Facts or allegations contained in the violation report/complaint that you admit (with specific reference 
to the paragraph number in the violation report/complaint): 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 2. Facts or allegations contained in the violation report/complaint that you deny (with specific reference 
to paragraph number in the violation report/complaint): 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 3. Facts or allegations contained in the violation report/complaint of which you have no personal 
knowledge (with specific reference to paragraph number in the violation report/complaint): 

 

 

 

 



Respondent Name           Page 4 
ER202_.000.00            Statement of Defense Form 
 
 

 

 

 4. Other facts which may exonerate or mitigate your possible responsibility or otherwise explain your 
relationship to the possible violation (be as specific as you can; if you have or know of any documents, 
photographs, maps, letters, or other evidence that you believe are relevant, please identify such evidence 
by name, date, type, and any other identifying information and provide the original or a copy if you 
can): 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 5. If the Executive Director is proposing that the Commission impose an administrative civil penalty as 
part of this enforcement proceeding and if you would be unable to pay the proposed penalty or paying 
the proposed penalty would have a substantial adverse effect on your ability to continue in business, 
provide factual information establishing such inability to pay or such adverse effect. Submit all relevant 
supporting documentation which may include but not be limited to audited financial statements and 
reports (or if not audited, then those that are the basis of tax returns or regulatory filings), balance sheets, 
profit and loss statements, statements of net worth, annual budgets, bond prospectuses, and tax returns 
including supporting forms and schedules as may be applicable. Before submitting this information 
redact (cover or blackout) all personal information including your social security or taxpayer 
identification number, driver's license/state identification number, financial account number and any 
other private, non-public personal information including a residential address, personal telephone 
numbers, or personal email address: 
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6. Any other information, statement, etc. that you want to make: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 7. Documents, exhibits, declarations under penalty of perjury or other materials that you have attached 
to or enclosed with this statement to support your answers or that you want to be made part of the 
administrative record for this enforcement proceeding. (Please list in chronological order by date, 
author, and title and enclose a copy with this completed form): 
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 8. Name of any person whose declaration under penalty of perjury was submitted with the violation 
report/complaint as being part of the staff's case who the respondent wants to cross-examine, identify all 
documents referred to in such person's declaration about which you want to cross-examine the person, 
the area or areas of information about which the respondent wants to cross-examine the person, and the 
information that the respondent hopes to elicit in cross-examination, and state the reason(s) why some 
other method of proving this information is unsatisfactory. 
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